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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in
this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmLR D

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$53,968,000 as compared with that of approximately
HK$64,464,000 in 2017. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to a
downtrend of the business of the mobile data solutions and mobile game
related services (the “Mobile Gaming Business”). The segment revenue
generated from Mobile Gaming Business had dropped from approximately
HK$35,144,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$21,892,000, representing a decrease of approximately 37.7%.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$38,967,000 as compared with that of approximately HK$48,823,000 in
2017. The decrease in loss was mainly due to (i) a decrease of approximately
HK$17,971,000 in the recognition of estimated changes in fair value of
contingent consideration assets for business combination relating to the
acquisition of 60% equity interest in First Surplus Investments Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“FS Group”) (the “Acquisition of FS Group”) as compared to
last year; (ii) a decrease of approximately HK$5,618,000 in the recognition
of estimated changes in fair value of consideration payable for business
combination relating to the Acquisition of FS Group as compared to last year;
(iii) a decrease of approximately HK$7,311,000 in administrative expenses
as compared to last year; and (iv) an impairment loss of approximately
HK$24,903,000 in goodwill relating to the Acquisition of FS Group.

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWL R D

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group engaged in (i) developing
and marketing of the patented server based technology and the provision
of communications software platform, software related services and the
custom-made software development services (the “Software Platform
Business”); (ii) money lending business (the “Money Lending Business”) and
(iii) Mobile Gaming Business.

Software Platform Business

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded segment
revenue from Software Platform Business of approximately HK$18,603,000,
representing an increase of approximately 27.8% from approximately
HK$14,561,000 of last year. The increase was mainly due to continuous
development of new applications and enhancement of our existing products
in order to fulfil the evolving industry standards and satisfy customers’
demand with a view of improving the overall performance of this segment.
The Group expects this segment to grow steadily in 2019 and will continue
to closely monitor the changes in the industry as well as the performance of
this segment.

Money Lending Business

The Group operates its Money Lending Business through Aurum Pacific
Finance Limited (“APF"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in which was granted a money lenders licence pursuant to the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Ordinance”). This segment has also formed another stable source of
revenue for the Group.

The Group has adopted money lending policy and procedure manuals which
set out the guidelines on handling and/or monitoring of money lending
procedures for internal control, risk management and compliance purposes.
These policy and manuals are reviewed from time to time in order to ensure
they remain responsive to the changes in operating environment and
consistent with updated rules and regulations.

The interest income for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$13,473,000, representing a decrease of approximately
8.7% as compared with that of approximately HK$14,759,000 in 2017. The
decrease was mainly due to considerable amount of repayment of loan and
diversification to shorter tenor loans in our loan portfolio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmLR D

As disclosed in announcements of the Company dated 22 October 2018
and 4 January 2019, subsequent to the settlement by Honghu Capital
Co. Ltd (“Honghu") of the final interest of approximately HK$1,361,000
on 22 October 2018 and a sum of HK$1,350,000 as partial repayment of
the loan principal in the amount of HK$27,000,000, the Group entered
into the second supplemental agreement with Honghu on 4 January 2019
pursuant to which APF agreed to extend the term of the loan in the amount
of HK$25,650,000 to 19 October 2019. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 4 January 2019.

During the second quarter in 2018, the Group had expanded this
business segment by establishing a division which is operated under
the brand “EZCASH" and focuses on personal loan products. Certain
amount of resources has been invested by the Group in system formation
and automation, experienced personnel, information technologies and
advertising. As a result, the interest income generated from EZCASH
contributed approximately HK$2,711,000 to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018. Although this development is still at early stage, we
are confident that EZCASH is creating a new platform in the money lending
market and will continue to make stable contribution to the Group’s revenue
and cash-flow stream in the time ahead.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmL R D

Mobile Gaming Business

As a mobile game developer with strong self-developed capabilities in
games, FS Group is engaged in the development of mobile games to
players around the world. FS Group also license out our games or related
intellectual properties to various well-established game operators as
our licensed operators with the exclusive and/or non-exclusive right to
operate, publish and distribute specific games within an agreed period and
designated territories. To further enhance its competitiveness, apart from
mobile games, FS Group has also provided innovative solution services to
customers. FS Group has been allocating resources to penetrate the market
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and has secured a partnership
with an established publisher in the PRC with a licensing arrangement. The
income of this segment for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$21,892,000, representing a decrease of approximately
37.7% as compared with that of approximately HK$35,144,000 in 2017.
Such decline in revenue was mainly due to the decreased contribution from
solution services that has affected the overall performance of this segment as
well as the performance of the Group.

With fierce competition by the effect from frequent introduction of new
games by game developers, fast and rapid technology advancement and
regulatory uncertainties in the markets, the Group faces a number of
challenges in mobile game industry. The Group also notices that the recent
regulatory control has caused certain impact on mobile game industry in
the PRC market and affect the valuation of game developers and operators.
As such, the Group had made an impairment loss of approximately
HK$24,903,000 in goodwill relating to the Acquisition of FS Group in order
to reflect the future industrial uncertainties and competition of this segment
and the impact from the recent regulatory control in the PRC market. Going
forward, the Group will be mindful on the business and regulatory risk in the
mobile game industry in order to carefully assess and mitigate the exposure
to inherent risks and uncertainties and impact to the segment. The Board will
also carefully monitor the rapid changing business environment in mobile
game industry and continue to seek for any opportunities in any market in
order to enhance the performance and value of the segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmLR D

OUTLOOK

We are committed in putting efforts in developing and upgrading our
products and services with a generic growth of business in order to broaden
our income sources. The Group will continue to seek potential investment
opportunities that can create synergies to our existing business segments, at
the same time bringing growth and long-term benefits to the Company and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group’s main business operations and investments are in Hong Kong.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$14,948,000 (2017: approximately HK$42,389,000). Most
of the cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate movement and will take
appropriate activities to reduce the exchange risk.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2018, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$324,784,000 (2017: approximately HK$405,730,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$54,208,000 (2017: approximately
HK$123,350,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total
liabilities over total assets, was approximately 16.7% (2017: approximately
30.4%) and the current ratio, calculated as current assets over current
liabilities, was approximately 3.20 (2017: approximately 1.32). The Directors
will continue to take measures to further improve the liquidity and gearing
position of the Group.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant Investment
On 20 August 2018, Tri King International Limited (“Tri King”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, together with two other
shareholders (collectively the “Vendors”) of Fore Freedom B.V. (“FF") and
XXLnet B.V. (“XXL"), the then associated companies of the Company,
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser (the
“Purchaser”) pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
purchase and the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell 74.5% equity
interest in FF, in which Tri King held 49%, and 67 % equity interest in XXL, in
which Tri King also held 49% (the “Disposal”). The Disposal was completed
on 21 September 2018. The proceeds received by Tri King is EUR3,433,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$31,540,000).

Details of the Disposal were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 20 August 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 11 May 2018, the Company entered into the memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU") with the shareholders of a limited company
incorporated in Turkey (the “Target”) in relation to the proposed acquisition
of 51% issued shares in the Target. The Target and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in generation and supply of electricity in Turkey. Details
of the MOU are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 11 May
2018. As of the date of this report, no formal or legally binding agreement
has been entered into between the Company and the Target’s shareholders
in respect of the abovementioned proposed acquisition.

Apart from those disclosed above, the Group did not have any other material
acquisition, disposal and significant investment for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each, of
which 1,272,640,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 6 April 2018, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Emperor Securities Limited as placing agent (“Emperor”), pursuant to which
Emperor would place, on a best effort basis, to not less than six independent
placees up to 184,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each of the Company
(the “Placing Share(s)”) at a price of HK$0.18 per Placing Share (the
"Placing”).

The completion of the Placing took place on 25 April 2018. An aggregate
of 184,000,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the
generate mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting
held on 4 May 2017. The aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares was
HK$7,360,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The net proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$32,337,000 and
the net issue price was approximately HK$0.176 per Placing Share. As stated
in the announcements of the Company dated 6 April 2018 and 25 April
2018, the net proceeds of approximately HK$32,337,000 would be used as
to (i) HK$10,000,000 for the development of the Money Lending Business;
(i) HK$5,000,000 for the development of the Mobile Gaming Business; (iii)
HK$8,000,000 for identifying the potential investment in the environmental
related projects; and (iv) the remaining balance as general working capital
purposes. As at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$10,000,000,
HK$4,633,000, HK$6,290,000 and HK$9,300,000 had been applied towards
its intended use for the development of the Money Lending Business, Mobile
Gaming Business, environmental related projects and general working capital
respectively.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group consistently adopts a conservative treasury policy during its
development and generally finances its operations and business development
with internally generated resources and equity and/or debt financing activities
in order to maintain a healthy liquidity position. The Group also strives to
reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit evaluation of
the financial conditions of its clients of Money Lending Business. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the financial position of the Group
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange
exposure.

Material Risk Factors
Details of the Group’s financial risk and analysis are set out in notes 27(a) to
27(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2018, the land and buildings of the Group at carrying
amount of approximately HK$38,831,000 (2017: approximately
HK$42,955,000) was pledged to secure interest-bearing borrowings of a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintained contingent liabilities that
are related to a corporate guarantee provided by the Company to a financial
institution for the loan utilised by the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, two subsidiaries of the Company
leased two motor vehicles under finance leases at the interest rates of
3.5%-4.8% per annum for terms of three and five years. The Company had
issued corporate guarantee in respect of the finance leases with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$3,188,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$4,170,000).

Upon completion of the Acquisition of FS Group on 25 October 2016, the
Company issued a corporate guarantee to the vendors for the due and
punctual performance by a subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser, under
the sale and purchase agreement that was fulfilled by way of, among others,
issuance of promissory note by the Company to the vendors. The remaining
balance of the promissory note was repaid in full on 5 October 2018 that the
related corporate guarantee to the vendors was released at the same date.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 66 employees (2017: 95
employees). The staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) were
approximately HK$21,238,000 (2017: approximately HK$29,947,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group’s remuneration policy is revised periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, company performance, individual qualifications
and performance, and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the
respective jurisdiction where the employees are employed.

Events after the Reporting Period
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group does not have other
significant events after the reporting period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place governance
practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake of
maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December
2018 except the CG Code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 with considered
reasons explained below.

Below are the major corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company with specific reference to the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company, overseeing
as well as the supervision of its business, approval of strategic plans and
monitoring the Company’s performance. The Board delegates the day-to-
day operations to the executive directors and management, while reserving
certain key matters for its approval.

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight Directors, of which
three are executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kwun Chung, Mr. Lee
Cheung Yuet Horace and Mr. Ng Kin Man; one is non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Zheng Yonggiang and four are independent non-executive
Directors (the “INED(s)”), namely Mr. Lenug Man Chun, Mr. Fok Kin Fung
Eric, Mr. Pang Siu Yin and Dr. Lee G. Lam. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors. The
Directors’ biographical information is set out in pages 29 to 33 under the
section headed “Biographies of Directors”.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive Directors and INEDs
so that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging
their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company and that the
current board size is adequate for its present operations. Each Director keeps
abreast of his responsibility as the Director and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals with
active participation of a majority of Directors, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. There were 18 Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2018 were set out as follows:
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Board meeting General meeting
Exeg REXE

Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung 16/17 171
PRI AR ST AE
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace! 14/14 11
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Mr. Chan Wai Kit2 14/16 IVl
BRIZAGEE A2
Non-Executive Director
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Mr. Zheng Yonggiang? 11 N/AT 3 A
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun 18/18 11
R FkE
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric 16/18 0/1
EfEERE
Mr. Pang Siu Yin4 11/16 0/1
ZIE A
Dr. Lee Nim Wais 11 N/AT i3 A
FREEES
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Notes:

1. Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace has been appointed as an executive Director on 5
February 2018.

2. Mr. Chan Wai Kit resigned as an executive Director and ceased as deputy Chairman

on 1 November 2018.

3. Mr. Zheng Yonggiang has been appointed as a non-executive Director on 1 October
2018.

4. Mr. Pang Siu Yin has been appointed as an INED on 15 January 2018.

5. Dr. Lee Nim Wai resigned as an INED on 15 January 2018.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman (“Chairman”) is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and
taking into account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in
the agenda while the chief executive officer (the “CEQ") is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Wai Kit, the then deputy Chairman of the Company, also assumed
the duties of the CEO until he resigned from these positions on 1 November
2018. This constitutes a deviation from Code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. However, the Board believes that vesting the roles of Chairman and
CEOQ in the same individual during the period until 31 October 2018 provided
the Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development and
execution of long-term business strategies.

On 1 October 2018, Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as the CEO.
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Following the resignation of Mr. Chan Wai Kit as the deputy chairman of
the Company on 1 November 2018, the Company does not have Chairman
for the time being. However, the Board is of the view that the balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals who would from time to time to discuss
issues affecting operations of the Company and the Group. This arrangement
can still enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly,
and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively. The
Company will, at the time when it thinks fit, arrange for new appointment of
the Chairman.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term. Currently, all the INEDs
have entered into letter of appointments with the Company for an initial
term of three years. Non-executive Director was not appointed for a specific
term but all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association
("Articles”). Moreover, according to the Articles, all Directors newly
appointed to fill a casual vacancy are subject to election at the next following
general meeting following their appointments. The Board considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those prescribed by Code
provision A.4.1, of the CG Code and therefore does not intend to take any
steps in this regard at the moment.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The CG Code provision A.6.7 requires that independent non-executive
directors should, among others, attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There is satisfactory
attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general
meeting during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 except that two
INEDs did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25
June 2018 due to their other important engagements at the relevant time.

Each INED has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs
meet the independence guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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The Company has complied at all times with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules that at least three INEDs sit in the Board and at least
one of them has appropriate professional accounting or related financial
management expertise.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for setting
directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and managing the
risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently three committees,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist
the Board in supervising certain functions of the management. Nomination
Committee assists the Board by developing and formulating relevant
procedures in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs and making
recommendation to the Board on appointment of Directors. Each of the
Committees is established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Company’s website and GEM website.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure for remuneration of
Directors and senior management and the specific remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the prevailing market conditions, individual
experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company and
its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the Group’s affairs.
The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Pang
Siu Yin, Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric and Mr. Chan Kwun Chung. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by an INED, Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
Four meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2018. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

RAREBH - FHEREm =B IFNTE
ER—BATEREAK  KEDRIRRXEE
£ wRBRE  ERBEEENRRTEDLL - B
TIFATERRXEEEEEFMEE SR -
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Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE,
BEREERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIAFEHTES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman) 4/4
RNEFTE(FE)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric 4/4
eliages e
Mr. Pang Siu Yin' 2/3
TIRBE A
Dr. Lee Nim Wai? N/ATNE A
AR
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung? N/ATN 3 A
FoR T AR S A3
Mr. Chan Wai Kit4 3/4
BRIZHE T4
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Notes:

1. Mr. Pang Siu Yin has been appointed as an INED on 15 January 2018.

2. Dr. Lee Nim Wai resigned as an INED on 15 January 2018.

3. Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as member of the remuneration

committee on 1 November 2018.

4. Mr. Chan Wai Kit resigned as deputy Chairman and an executive Director on
1 November 2018.

Summary of works

During the year 2018, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages of all the Directors, reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
proposed executive Director and non-executive Director and INED in
accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing
the nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board on
such appointments with due regard to the nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) and the Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”), and assessing
the independence of the INEDs.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises three
INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Pang
Siu Yin, Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric and Mr. Chan Kwun Chung. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by an INED, Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year to
review the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board. In addition, the Nomination Committee also meets
as it is required to consider nomination related matters. Three meetings were
held during the year ended 31 December 2018. The attendance of each
member is set out as follows:
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Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
BERHERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYkHTES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman) 3/3
BB (FE)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric 3/3
EEERE
Mr. Pang Siu Yin' 2/2
TIKB L
Dr. Lee Nim Wai? N/A i@ FA
FREEE?
Executive Directors
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Mr. Chan Kwun Chung? N/A N3 A
ReR e A ST A3
Mr. Chan Wai Kit* 3/3
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Notes:

1. Mr. Pang Siu Yin has been appointed as an INED on 15 January 2018.
2. Dr. Lee Nim Wai resigned as an INED on 15 January 2018.

3. Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as member of the Nomination Committee
on 1 November 2018.

4. Mr. Chan Wai Kit resigned as deputy Chairman and an executive Director on 1
November 2018.

Summary of works

During the year 2018, the Nomination Committee assessed the independence
of INEDs, reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the proposed
reappointment of Directors, reviewed the Board diversity policy, the structure,
size and composition of the Board and made recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of the proposed executive Director, non-executive
Directors and INED in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s written
terms of reference.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy in February 2019 regarding the
nomination, appointment, re-appointment of Directors and the nomination
procedure of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will select candidate for directorship based on
his/her character, integrity, professorial qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, and diversity of the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other criteria
that are appropriate for the business and corporate strategy of the Company.

For appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee evaluates
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship. For those qualified candidates,
recommendations are made to the Board. For re-election of the retiring
director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring Director and
the level of participation and performance on the Board and determine
whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as set out above.
Recommendation are then made to shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of Director at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy at least
annually or at any time necessary.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 1 September 2013. A
summary of this policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below.

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a numbers
of measurable aspects including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered with the objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’'s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises three
INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of services,
professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the Board Diversity
Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor, to
evaluate the overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
frameworks, to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and other financial reporting matters and ensure the completeness,
accuracy and fairness of the financial statements, to monitor compliance with
statutory and listing requirements and to oversee the relationship with the
external auditors.
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The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board. At least one member has an appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors and senior
executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of the Audit
Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group’s external auditor
and the management.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric and Mr. Pang Siu Yin.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year.
Four meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2018. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Summary of works

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed
the quarterly, interim and annual results, made recommendations to the
Board on the terms of engagement of the external auditor, and reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of systems of risk management and internal
control, and its other duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s
written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG Code
and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group’s preliminary
quarterly results, interim results and annual financial statements and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, to review
the scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group's internal control system,
internal audit and risk management matters and to review the Group's
financial and accounting policies.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as
set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the policies of the
corporate governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set
out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an annual
basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the audit fee.
The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-audit service (including
professional advice on taxation and due diligence) for the year ended 31
December 2018 provided by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was HK$850,000
and HK$345,000 respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
internal control system includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders and
the Group's assets. It has been an important duty of the Board to conduct
a review of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the
system of the Group annually or at any time necessary. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions.

The Group has engaged an external independent consultant to conduct the
annual review on the effectiveness of the internal control system. Review
of the Group’s internal controls covering major operational, financial and
compliance controls, as well as risk management functions of different
systems has been performed on a systematic rotational basis on the risk
assessments of the operations and controls. No major issues on the internal
control system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside Information in
respect of procedures and internal control for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to Rule 17.10 of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provision under Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Directors are
continuously updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
directors will be arranged at the expenses of the Company where necessary.
For the year 2018, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or studying materials relevant to
director’s duties and responsibility. Their training records have been provided
to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Ching Man resigned as Company Secretary on 17 May 2018.
Ms. Yuen Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yuen”) has been appointed as the Company
Secretary on 17 May 2018. In accordance with rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules, Ms. Yuen has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year under review.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had adopted a
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry
of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the related party transactions, if
any, are periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All the
shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice of
annual general meeting at which Directors are available to answer questions
on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s activities is provided
in its annual report, interim report and quarterly reports which are sent to
shareholders and investors. The Company’s announcements, press releases
and publications are published and are also available on GEM website and on
the Company'’s website at www.aurumpacific.com.hk.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was not any change in
the Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the
Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website
and GEM website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

28

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company (the “Extraordinary General
Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall also be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the secretary
for the purpose of requiring an Extraordinary General Meeting to be
called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by email
at administrator@aurumpacific.com.hk or by post to the Company’s
Hong Kong head office at 21/F., Henan Building, 90 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquiries with the
Board directly at the general meetings.

Make proposals at general meetings

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a

Shareholders” meeting

Pursuant to the Articles (as amended from time to time), the
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an Extraordinary General Meeting according to the
procedures as set out above.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kwun Chung (“Mr. Chan"”), aged 38, has been appointed as
an executive Director since March 2017 and as the chief executive officer,
authorised representative and compliance officer of the Company since
October 2018. He is also a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee and is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and Master of
Arts in Applied Economics from the University at Buffalo, The State University
of New York in 2002 and 2004 respectively. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Chan worked in the fields of financial advisory, insurance, healthcare
and he has extensive experiences in customer relationship management,
project management, business advisory and risk management. Mr. Chan was
an independent non-executive director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8022), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from 1
January to 1 March 2017.

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (“Mr. Lee”), aged 37, has been appointed as
an executive Director of the Company since February 2018, and is a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee obtained his Bachelor Degree
of Commerce (Accounting) from The University of Queensland, Australia in
2004. Mr. Lee has been a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2009 and has become a fellow member since 2014. Mr.
Lee has over 14 years of experience in financial reporting, investment analysis,
mergers and acquisition exercises and business development. Mr. Lee has
been taking up various senior positions in the financial and business sectors
for over 8 years and he also has extensive experience in terms of Hong Kong
listed companies. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director
of each of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited (stock code: 1188) and Chuan
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1420), the shares of both companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng Kin Man (“Mr. Ng”), aged 42, has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1 March 2019. He joined the Company as the chief financial
officer in June 2018 and is currently a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Ng graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the
United Kingdom with a bachelor degree in Accounting and Finance. Mr. Ng
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants,
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a fellow member and a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. He has over 16 years of extensive experience in auditing and
financial management, IPO, international bond offerings and M&As. He
also has extensive experience in different industries and is specializing in
property development in the PRC, financial institution field, money lending,
manufacturing and general management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng
held senior positions in several listed companies in Hong Kong.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zheng Yonggiang (“Mr. Zheng"), aged 40, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company since October 2018. He has been
a director and shareholder of Global Ocean International Holdings Limited
(“Global Ocean”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
since early 2018 and responsible for the formulation and implementation of
business strategy and R&D in software system design and development of
Global Ocean. He has over 17 years of experience in software engineering
and information technology system development. He currently also serves as
the chief technical officer of Guangzhou Mega Environmental Technology
Limited. Prior to that, he was the Associate Software Engineer Manager
(ASEM) of HSBC Software Development Guangdong Ltd.. Mr. Zheng
graduated from South China University of Technology in the PRC with a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Applied Maths in 2001. He obtained a Professional
Master Degree of Engineering from Sun Yat-Sen University in the PRC in
2005, with major in software engineering. He has attained the Qualification
Certificate of Computer and Software Technology Proficiency (System
Analyst) in the PRC issued by The Personnel Department of Guangdong
Province in 2004 and the Certificate of Project Management Professional
issued by the Project Management Institute in 2010 respectively.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung”), aged 31, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since February 2016. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He has been engaging in financial services sector
for over 7 years, along with ample experience in an international accounting
firm and an international bank. He currently serves as a corporate finance
principal for a professional firm. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Social
Sciences from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2009. Mr. Leung is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and joined the
Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2018.
Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of Evershine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022) shares of which are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric (“Mr. Fok"), aged 35, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since March 2016. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr.
Fok has over 10 years’ experience in financial advisory industry, with ample
experience in asset management and risk management. Mr. Fok obtained a
bachelor degree of banking and finance from the University of London and
currently serves as a senior financial advisor at an international insurance
corporation.
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Mr. Pang Siu Yin (“Mr. Pang”), aged 58, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since January 2018.
He is also the member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He graduated from the University of Leeds
with a bachelor of laws degree in 1984 and obtained a master of business
administration degree from the University of Aston in Birmingham in
1985. Mr. Pang also obtained a postgraduate certificate in laws from the
University of Hong Kong in 1988. Mr. Pang has been a practising solicitor
of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1990 and was also admitted as a
solicitor in England and Wales in 1997. He is currently a partner of LCP, a
firm of solicitors in Hong Kong, with his practice focusing on commercial and
litigation. Mr. Pang is currently an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock code: 6828), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Singapore Stock Exchange
(stock code: UQ7). Mr. Pang was an independent non-executive director of
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from November 2016 to September
2018; and an independent non-executive director of Winto Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8238), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
from July 2015 to March 2018.

Dr. Lee G. Lam (“Dr. Lam”), aged 59, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since January 2019. He
is the chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited,
non-executive chairman — Hong Kong and ASEAN Region and chief adviser
to Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets Asia, a member of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government’s Committee on Innovation,
Technology and Re-Industrialisation and the Court of the City University of
Hong Kong, convenor of the panel of advisors on Building Management
Disputes of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
Home Affairs Department, president of the United Nations Economic and
Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UN ESCAP) Sustainable Business
Network (ESBN) Executive Council and chairman of its Task Force on Banking
and Finance, a board member of Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC),
a member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Belt and Road
Committee and convenor of its Digital Silk Road Working Group, a member
of the Sir Murray MaclLehose Trust Fund Investment Advisory Committee,
honorary advisor to the Hong Kong Business Angel Network (HKBAN),
honorary chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA Australia, chairman of Monte Jade
Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong and president of Hong
Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation.
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Dr. Lam has over 30 years of international experience in general management,
management consulting, corporate governance, direct investment,
investment banking and fund management across the telecommunications/
media/technology (TMT), consumer/healthcare, infrastructure/real estates,
energy/resources and financial services sectors. Dr. Lam earlier served as
a general manager of Hongkong Telecom, vice president and managing
partner — Greater China of the international management consulting firm
A.T. Kearney, president & CEO and vice chairman of the board of directors
of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (now renamed as C.P. Lotus
Corporation) of multinational conglomerate CP Group, vice chairman and
COO of Investment Banking Division of BOC International Holdings (the
international investment banking arm of the Bank of China group), executive
director of Singapore Technologies Telemedia (a member of Temasek
Holdings), and chairman — Hong Kong/Vietnam/Cambodia/Laos/Myanmar/
Thailand and senior adviser — Asia of Macquarie Capital.

Dr. Lam holds a BSc in sciences and mathematics, an MSc in systems science
and an MBA from the University of Ottawa in Canada, a post-graduate
diploma in public administration from Carleton University in Canada, a post-
graduate diploma in English and Hong Kong Law and an LLB (Hons) in law
from Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in law from
the University of Wolverhampton in the UK, a PCLL in law from the City
University of Hong Kong, a certificate in Professional Accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong SCS, an MPA and a PhD from the University
of Hong Kong.

Formerly a member of the Hong Kong Bar, Dr. Lam is a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong, an honorary fellow of CPA Australia, a fellow of CMA
Australia, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, an Accredited
Mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR), a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and an honorary fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Facility Management and the University of Hong Kong
School of Professional and Continuing Education (HKU SPACE).
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Dr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of each of CSI
Properties Limited, Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited, Vongroup Limited, Mei
Ah Entertainment Group Limited, Elife Holdings Limited, Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd. (a company also listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange), Huarong
Investment Stock Corporation Limited, Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited
(formerly known as Highlight China loT International Limited), Kidsland
International Holdings Limited, Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited and
Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited; and a non-executive director
of each of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited, China LNG Group
Limited, National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited, China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited and Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Limited (the shares of all of the aforementioned companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange). He is also an independent non-executive director of
each of China Real Estate Grp Ltd. (formerly known as Asia-Pacific Strategic
Investments Limited), Top Global Limited and JCG Investment Holdings Ltd.
(formerly known as China Medical (International) Group Limited), and a non-
executive director of Singapore eDevelopment Limited (the shares of all of
the aforementioned companies are listed on Singapore Exchange). Dr. Lam
is also an independent director of Sunwah International Limited (a company
listed on Toronto Stock Exchange); an independent non-executive director
of AustChina Holdings Limited (a company listed on Australian Securities
Exchange); an independent non-executive director of TMC Life Sciences
Berhad (a company listed on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad), and a non-executive director of Adamas Finance Asia Limited (a
company listed on London Stock Exchange).

In the past three years precedent his appointment as an independent non-
executive director of the Company, Dr. Lam was a non-executive director of
Roma Group Limited from 13 September 2017 to 11 December 2017; an
independent non-executive director of each of Xi'an Haitiantian Holdings
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Xi’an Haitain Antenna Holdings Co., Ltd.) from
15 September 2017 to 23 July 2018 and Imagi International Holdings Limited
from 11 May 2010 to 28 January 2016, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange; and an independent non-executive director of Rowsley Ltd. (a
company listed on Singapore Exchange) from 26 June 2002 to 25 April 2018;
and an independent non-executive director of Vietnam Equity Holding (a
company listed on Stuttgart Stock Exchange) from 25 October 2007 to 28
February 2018.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 12. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on page 11 and disclosed in the section headed “Financial risk management
and fair values of financial instruments” in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Important events affecting the Group is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 12.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-years Financial Summary
on page 208. The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient
use of resources and energy saving. Green initiatives and measures have been
adopted in the Group’s operation. A separate Environmental, Social and
Governance Report will be published no later than three months after the
publication of this annual report. For details, please refer to the Company’s
website.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group recognises
that employees, customers and business partners are the keys to sustainable
development. The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring
relationship with our employees, providing quality services to our customers
and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing operations attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year under review is as follows:

FEERFRMUER
FARSEREENBEENFIREEERF R
HIER 2 B SR 2 HE LR ERH
T~

Percentage of the Group’s total

R EBEABEZADL
Sales Purchases
HE g
The largest customer BREFE 36%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFPAR 50%
The largest supplier SAHER 58%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHERE ST 88%

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the Company’s
affairs for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 56 to 207.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company pursues a continuity-based dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
which aims to allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board should take into account, inter alias, the Company’s
operating results, actual and expected financial performance, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and members of the
Group, the Group's debt to equity ratios, liquidity position, the Group
expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans, any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lender, general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and relevant.
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The Board will review, modify and/or update the Dividend Policy at any time as
it deems fits and necessary.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$207,064,000 (2017:
HK$233,998,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

X
RAVMBRFEEREERARERMCEEEHN
N

Resigned/
Appointed on Retired on
=E BHE,RE

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung PR RS A
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace TS A
Mr. Ng Kin Man R ek
Mr. Chan Wai Kit BRIZGESEE
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zheng Yonggjiang B 5K 58 S A
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Leung Man Chun BN
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric ERBLE
Mr. Pang Siu Yin KB EE
Dr. Lee G. Lam MEEEL
Dr. Lee Nim Wai R

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles, Mr. Zheng
Yonggiang, Dr. Lee G. Lam and Mr. Ng Kin Man, who were appointed as
a non-executive Director, an INED and an executive Director on 1 October
2018, 1 January 2019 and 1 March 2019 respectively, will hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 108 (A) of the Company's Articles, Mr. Fok Kin
Fung Eric will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report.

20/3/2017 N/ATjiE
5/2/2018 N/ATjiE
1/3/2019 N/AT 3

13/10/2014 1/11/2018

1/10/2018 N/AAT3iE

23/2/2016 N/AT i A
2/3/2016 N/ATiE A

15/1/2018 N/ATN 3 A
1/1/2019 N/AAT i

16/3/2016 15/1/2018
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DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) (Chapter 571 under the laws of Hong Kong), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

Interest in a subsidiary of the Company

Mr. Zheng Yonggiang personally holds voting shares of HK$1 each in the
following subsidiary:
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Number of voting

shares held

FrisRERRD2HE

Personal interest

Name =g B AR
Global Ocean International Holdings Limited TE GBI IR AR A A 2,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors of
the Company, had, was deemed to have any interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, (Chapter
571 under the laws of Hong Kong)) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE
THEIR INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE

COMPANY

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2018, the following
persons, other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, had, or
was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or who were expected to be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group:

TERR

BEEMRMN R-_T—-\F+-_A=1+—8"
THAL(EEHARFEZTHRABRINRE
MMM THESR - KE/IWEFEERE
EH R E GO FEXVERE2 B30 FF R SRR A
RARBZARE 2 EEIAR - HTERKEE
KRG E SN AT RERIER TEA KRBT
I B AR Z RRAE EREZ AR AE
E5% A £ 2 42

Approximate

Number of  percentage of

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity shares shareholding
TERRHES BB %) ROBE BOREBDL
(Note 1) (Note 2)

(BizF1) (Hfi22)

Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung Beneficial owner 673,317,955 (L) 52.91%

FHERME ST A EmEAA

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.

2. The total number of 1,272,640,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2018 has been

used for the calculation for the approximately percentage.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of other
interests or short positions of any other person (other than the Directors
and chief executives and the substantial shareholders of the Company) in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2018.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognise and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of
10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option Scheme
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March 2013 and note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of “Invested
Entity” be added to the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the Share
Option Scheme”). Details of the Amendments to the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2016 and the
Company's circular dated 13 April 2016.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2018,
Shareholders approved the refreshment of the maximum number of shares
which may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all share options
under the Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of options available for granting by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme was 127,264,000, representing 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to date of this report, the
Company had not granted any options and no outstanding options under
the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which the
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on page 208 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other that the Share Option Scheme of the Company, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
requires the Company to enter into an agreement that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares, were entered into by the Group during the Year
or existed at the end of 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Directors
have the following interests in the business apart from the Group’s business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business :

EFEHBERE
AEBPNBERAFZEEREERBBEREHN
AFFRE208H ©

RIREHE
REBRKGTEIFBRN G A VB mEM T
24 -

FHM 1=
BT ARBZBRENE REAFEIR-F
—N\FFER - RRAET L EABEAE
BRRARBEITRMOBRERBE TR - ABERKEAR
RIRT AR B & S AT AN A w327 TR BY
IR EZHMD 7 o

EERBFRB P 2R
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Director Name of company Nature of business Nature of interests
= NRER EBuE EEME
Mr. Leung Man Chun  *Evershine Group Holdings Limited (“Evershine") and Money lending business  INED of Evershine

its subsidiary

RS E *kREEERERA AN ([0 RAKEAR]
Dr. Lee G. Lam AChina Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited
("China Shandong”) and its subsidiary
HREEL MRS ES BEMARAAR(FELE ) REHBAA

AHua Long Jin Kong Company Limited (“Hua Long Jin Kong")
and its subsidiary
NERSIARAR (2B ) RANBA

el

AMei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (“Mei Ah”) and
its associate
NEDREEREEBRORN([RE]) REBBLAF

* listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange

* REERPTGEM LT

listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
FEEAZFTER BT

>

>

EEE® KBZBUFFRTES

Money lending business  Non-executive Director of
China Shandong

fEEE® FRILE 2 EHTES

Money lending business  INED of Hua Long Jin Kong

fEEE® ERBEIINTES

Mobile game applications INED of Mei Ah

FRERER XD BUFNTES
BighBEEEBRAR 4

F3 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERSE

As the Board is independent to the boards of the above mentioned
companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of,
and at arm'’s length, from the business of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the
Directors has an interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business in which the Group is engaged.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2018 interim report
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

With effect from 1 October 2018, Mr. Chan Kwun Chung, an executive
Director, has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company.
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as a member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee, the Compliance Officer
and Authorised Representative with effect from 1 November 2018.

Details of the above changes was set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 September 2018.

With effect from 25 January 2019, Dr. Lee G. Lam has been appointed as an
INED of TMC Life Sciences Berhad, a company listed on the Main Board of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 13 to 28 of
this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review, in draft form, the
Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly reports
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The audit
committee is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control of the Group. As at
the date of this report, the audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Pang Siu Yin and Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric. Mr. Leung
Man Chun is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the internal controls
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on
such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the public float
requirement under rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is, any
permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the directors
of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or any of its
subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group does not have other
significant events after the reporting period.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kwun Chung
Executive Director

22 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBAHRES

@ pakertilly
w5457 5

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 56 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FREISER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were BERMzEELE  TERAFEAZEHAR
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements R ERRBIREECEE - ZS5FHEL
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our ERMEGRE B RFTETET 2 ERBEA TR
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 2. WHHBEER  MERMALTHZEEEE

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. ViIREER o
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
FEENEE BRMREFPEBEZBEZF A

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwill

HEEEZRENRAE 2 EEH

Refer to Notes 2(g), 2(m)(iii) and 12 of the audited consolidated financial statements

R R E AR S TSR i 2(g) ~ 2(m)ii) & 12

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s carrying amount of  Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:
goodwill was allocated to two cash-generating units (“CGUs"), B HEZ B EFEE(EPEE) -

namely, software platform and mobile game business of
HK$20,236,000 and HK$64,530,000 together with impairment e
loss of HK$Nil and HK$24,903,000.

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H EEEFEZREAEERR
EEEIEEMERSELEN([REEESEMN]) - BIEGF o
BN FHEER - BRME{E 520,236,000/ 7T & 64,530,000/

TG RBEEE AT A T K% 24,903,000/ T °
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evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by
the management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

SHEERERER 2 BREA - HAIRREERE
R AT B 2 BRI ¢

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management'’s forecasting;

HEREREEEMRRZASRERA - BETEE
BEMGZBEEREN  UHBTEREREZSHEE
ETHBAFEERERNCES
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEEIEHE

FREIBR(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPRESPREZBEZFE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

HERECRENRAERZERA®(E)

Refer to Notes 2(g), 2(m)(iii) and 12 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI E AR S TSR iE2(g) ~ 2(m)iil) & 12(48)

The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill is based on the
future businesses’ prospect and forecast business performance
of these businesses.

AR IR D ERZEEREZ REEBA R RFERE
BRH -

Due to its inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and
discounting future cash flows, which are the basis of the
assessment of recoverability, this is one of the key judgemental
areas that our audit concentrated on. There is the risk that
the key assumptions, estimates and judgements on which the
calculations are based are inappropriate and that goodwill is
overstated as a result.

RREATER KRR RRSRET B RAEZ MEEE (R
REHERERIE Z BEE) - WARMEA I Z EEHER
Hz— o WREZEFAEAERBEZIBRK - At RAEHTE
B AeTASABEZEAR -

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2019
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of the goodwill; and

MBS ERE 2B EL - BEREATZ -
—NEEFARANZHEEER RMERXLBERE
NrHA R E 2 RAEESDEE &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

HERFRBRENREREREZBR (IR FLETER
BANEeRAERBEVEIRR)BHUIEERSR

7 e
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEEIEE

FREIBR(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPRNESPREZBEZ S E

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets

BBV EE RERNEE Rz I E

Refer to Notes 2(k), 2(m)(iii) and 11 of the audited consolidated financial statements

R E A A R A M E20k) ~ 2(m)i) %11

The Group has generated significant intangible assets of
mobile games of HK$44,111,000 (2017: HK$56,947,000) from
acquisition of First Surplus Investments Ltd. and its subsidiaries
(together “FS Group”), whose recoverability is dependent on the
ability of the businesses to which it relates to generate sufficient
future economic benefits. There is a risk that this will not be the
case which would result in an impairment being required.

£ B AFirst Surplus Investments Ltd. & EH{ B X &) (4 FE FS&
J)ZM&Z%EPF%{EM 111,000/ 70(=ZF —+4F : 56,947,000
BIL)MASFHER Y BREE - HAIRWEEURN LB
BEATRRZRREER 2857 - A FEEBCREES

FRZAKERamMA TRELZIER 2R
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Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

BAEL T H B RFE(EPaR)

° evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by
the management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

o FHMHEREEMERZEBERETE  FRIRHEEEERE
KA RIALNIR R G M 2 R 0%
o assessing and challenging the cash flow projections

prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management'’s forecasting;

o FEMEREEEMRE A SRETER  BEFEE
EEﬁﬁZLE’EﬁE\E THBAEREREZEEE
ETHENAFHEEEBA 2 EE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEEIEHE

FREIBER(EA)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPRESPREZBEZFE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets (Continued)

HEVEE 2 RENEA 2 EEH (R

Refer to Notes 2(k), 2(m)(iii) and 11 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI E AR S TSR AZ M iF2(k) ~ 2(m)i) %11 (%)

The carrying amount of the mobile games is dependent on the
business being able to generate revenue from the paying players
and platform owners for the games developed by FS Group.

FHER < REEIBRNZFEHES BFSRBRE 2 BN &
MEEFemEEEL N -

Impairment reviews are performed by the Group when there is
an indication that the carrying amount may not be supported.
The impairment reviews are based on discounted cash flow
projections reflecting a number of assumptions and estimates
which require judgement and are inherently uncertain.

BHBRREEREF2BER - ERERETRESR - BE
EHNERBRRERETRN - LIRS IBZEAE 2R
R RAEFTWFHEREE 2 THEEIE ©

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2019
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of the mobile games; and

MBS ERE 2 BEL  BEREATZ -
—NEEFARANZHEEER RMERIMERE
ARHEFRBE  RAERTEE « &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of the mobile games.

HERFRRENREREREZBR(BIZFHEET
BESBFKRODSRARRBREFELRRAEZIEES
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEEIEE

FREIBR(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPRNESPREZBEZ S E

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables

BRERRFEZHERFE

Refer to Notes 2(m)(i), 2(p), 2(q), 18 and 27(a) of the audited consolidated financial statements

FERHREE A A EIRENTZ2(m)0) » 2(0) ~ 2(q) ~ 18K27(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest receivables recorded
initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of the loans receivable and interest
receivables were HK$108,519,000 (2017: HK$96,948,000) and
HK$2,197,000 (2017: HK$1,925,000) respectively.

EEERGAMBRARPERY AN B2 EIRER
MFE - WEAREEKARR - RZF—N\F+ZA=+—
H - ERER M ERF S 2 BREES 5)4108,519,000%8 7L (=
T —+4F 1 96,948,000/ 70 ) 52,197,000 L ( —F —+4F ¢
1,925,000/ 7T) °

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the
Group's accounting for loan loss impairment by replacing HKAS
39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected
credit loss (“ECL") approach.

FEBUAREEEREEER(TRREERE]) ERREB &5
EREIVRZELBIRE - RATBMBHRERNESREK
BA LS BSXEAEERERREZGEE -
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Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

BMERTEZE T REFEER(ERERE)

° obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to the
Group's accounting records;

o  EERERFEERBZEEA(RIEMITHEREME R hE

(E)AHER BEREEFLHEHZAE  FX - 2H
A REMER

° testing of controls designed and applied in the process of
approving and granting loans, subsequent monitoring of
repayment status and of any loan extensions;

o HRMENRREERZBREPARE RERZEHIEITA
A HRERETGIRERAMERER ;

. assessing the effectiveness of key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, the
governance for the ECL models, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL;

o PEIESENERHERMET  BREREERK
ZEA - BREE R AR 2 8 AR
RIBRZ AL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEEIEHE

FREIBER(EA)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPRESPREZBEZFE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

BREREFE 2 EERFE(E)

Refer to Notes 2(m)(i), 2(p), 2(q), 18 and 27(a) of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
BRI E RGBT HEENZT2m)) - 2(0) ~ 2(q) ~ 18K27(a)(#)

The measurement of ECL requires the application of significant
judgement and increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL model (for
exposures assessed individually or collectively), such as the
expected future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors.

BHEREEREZFEZRERERAG SIE Nz EME - EE
mEMNEEEERERLZAR - ARFAHREEBIERA P E
AzBR(AEBHEBFEZARTE) - PIFERRKIRE
MENMAEEZ ZEEERR -

Due to the significance of loans and interest receivables
(representing 34% of total assets) and inherent uncertainty in
such estimates, we considered this as a key audit matter.

R EREREFBEBERN(EREE3L%) kAt 2BEBET
HEEN  RIFRAUL AT EEER -

assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models
and the Group's criteria for assessing if there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL
basis and the qualitative assessment;

. ERERHBEEREEAR EKEHEHEER
BERCHBLENRESREE < BRERIZE2HES
EEBEBREENEZ R M ERE 2 AR

recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis;

MR ERTERR ZEFRF BN

obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the
borrowers; and

ERERERAZERBERERE R

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.

BEHRZEERE  LREREABER TR
EHEB ML RIRR BB RA -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBAHRES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYUZBERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBAHRES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019

Tong Wai Hang

Practising certificate number P06231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEZEKR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &HZE—ZE—N\FF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB T/ )

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt THExT FT
(Note)
(B5E)
Revenue Wz 3
— Provision of software platform —REESGTEa 18,603 14,561
— Interest income from money lending — BEEB SR EWA 13,473 14,759
— Mobile gaming income —FHEBEEIA 21,892 35,144
53,968 64,464
Cost of sales SHEE R AR (9,124) (9,134)
Gross profit EH 44,844 55,330
Other income, net Hap g A CF58) 4 1,103 336
Changes in fair value of: N EZE :
— contingent consideration assets for —¥EBE A
business combination REEE = (17,971)
— prepayment option embedded in —BEITERAERNE 2
promissory note issued RATEFRE (116) (721)
— consideration payable for business —¥GAHENRE
combination (778) (6,396)
Administrative expenses TR (49,146) (56,457)
Research and development expenses R X (7,564) (12,474)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R iER X (2,498) (4,124)
Impairment loss on goodwill AR REEE 12 (24,903) -
Loss on disposal of associates SR = AR EE 13 (3,339) -
Loss from operations R EE (42,397) (42,477)
Finance costs BEKA 5(a) (2,513) (2,412)
Share of profits of associates JEIEEE R AR 1,376 1,040
Share of profit of a joint venture JEEE & = 3
Loss before taxation FRA% A 18 5 (43,534) (43,846)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigsife, (%) 6 1,462 (1,889)
Loss for the year FEER (42,072) (45,735)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S A 42 3L
?nfztl? SE&® iFZ
For the year ended 31 December 2018 &EHZE—ZE—N\FF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB TR )

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
et THExT FT
(Note)
(B5E)
Attributable to: BTN A e
— owners of the Company R VNGIEZ 2= PN (38,967) (48,823)
— non-controlling interests —JFIERR S (3,105) 3,088
(42,072) (45,735)
HK cents HK cents
AL il
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted EARNEE 9 (3.21) (4.50)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 65 to 207 form part of the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
neRaRkAEMEEESER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &HZE—ZE—N\FF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (AF7TI7R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FT
(Note)
(B5E)
Loss for the year FEEE (42,072) (45,735)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FEHMGEZEGBIR) WA
for the year, net of nil tax BINREHIE
ltems that may be classified subsequently HigrgentEsiamcEE ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of HMEHNE TG TSk 2
financial statements of foreign operations PEH =58 (206) 4
Share of exchange differences of associates JEAEEE ARIEH =58 (661) 1,397
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified to profit HEBEARBENHES
or loss upon disposal of associates Bz RETHE H KE (737) -
(1,604) 1,401
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEZHEBAXAE (43,676) (44,334)
Attributable to: PPN=; 3
— owners of the Company A VNCIEZZ =N (40,495) (47,422)
— non-controlling interests — BT RR i (3,181) 3,088
(43,676) (44,334)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the Mis: : AEBR T —N\F—A—BYBREREBUBR
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). HAERFE 155 R BB R ELEAFENR o RIFFTE
BZBERE  WARBILEBER o BHF2()

The notes on pages 65 to 207 form part of the consolidated financial F655207 8 2 Mk ARG B 53k 2 48 A B

AN

statements. 77 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI R

As at 31 December 2018 RZ-ZE—N\F+_A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB TR )

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FH&T FHT
(Note)
(F3E)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R N GRE 10 47,734 53,234
Intangible assets E A E 11 44,111 56,947
Goodwill EES 12 84,766 109,669
Interests in associates NN 13 - 34,901
Interest in a joint venture R—EEETE R 14 = 13
Investment in equity securities AR H 7 & 15 500 500
Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEME  BEREE
plant and equipment BfitLe 3,000 3,000
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 23(b) 1,248 1,196
181,359 259,460
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 44 44
Contract assets BHEE 16 3,872 -
Trade and other receivables JFEE AT B S50 B EL At PR SRR 17 13,845 4,847
Loans receivable JEWE R 18 108,519 96,948
Interest receivables FEURF B, 18 2,197 1,925
Prepayment option embedded in BBITREREFRE 2
promissory note issued RREE 27(1) = 116
Current tax recoverable ATk [E] B EARS IE 23(a) = 1
Cash and cash equivalents B RRESEEY 19 14,948 42,389
143,425 146,270
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables JERTERF R H A FE TR 20 3,384 2,948
Contract liabilities Al 16 6,735 -
Deferred income EIEYA = 7174
Interest-bearing borrowings M B ETR 21 33,000 28,000
Obligations under finance leases RETHERE 22 1,030 982
Consideration payable for business combination 274 HHEN KB 27(f) - 71,651
Current tax payable FETENERREIE 23(a) 623 -
44,772 110,755
Net current assets REBEEFE 98,653 35,515
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAEBERABEE 280,012 294,975
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

As at 31 December 2018 R=_ZE— ) \F+_-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB T/ )

2018 2017
—B-N\E —FtF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt THET FBT
(Note)
(fF7E)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligations under finance leases RETREAIE 22 2,158 3,188
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIERE 23(b) 7,278 9,407
9,436 12,595
NET ASSETS EEFE 270,576 282,380
Capital and reserves BEARR G
Share capital [ 26(a) 50,906 43,546
Reserves B 197,477 213,561
Total equity attributable to owners RRBEE AEGERBE
of the Company 248,383 257,107
Non-controlling interests Eaaliig 22,193 25,273
TOTAL EQUITY A 270,576 282,380

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March BEEER T -NEF=A T BAHERRET

2019. £
Chan Kwun Chung Lee Cheung Yuet Horace
R 58 A8 g
Director Director
£ E

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the MizE : AERBR-_ZT—-N\F—A—BYBEAEBMBER
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). HAERIE 155 R BB M EERFEIT - BIFATE
BZBERE  WAREILEER « RATE2() °

The notes on pages 65 to 207 form part of the consolidated financial F655207 8 2 Mk AANGR G B 15 3R 2 48 A B

-

statements. 77 e

N

60 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREZESH X

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &EHZE—ZE—N\FF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTI7R)
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREEAERL
Non-
Share Share Capital Capital  Exchange Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
s ROEE  EABE  EAB®  ENGE  EtEE  ZEE &t FERES &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn T T T T TiEn T T
(note 26(b)(i))  (note 26(b)(i)  (note 26(b)iil)  (note26(b)(iv))  (note 26(0)(v))
(zaelo)iy)  (Fstas(o)i) — (Pstas(o)) (REr2e(oiiv) (FiEF26(b))
At 1 January 2017 RZF-tE-f-A 36,288 335,501 2421 16,699 (143) - (114513) 276,259 22,185 298 444
Changes in equity for 2017 E-tE EREE:
Loss for the year EEE - - - - - - (48.823) (48.823) 3,088 45,735)
Bxchange differences on translation of BRENERHIBERL
financial statements of foreign operations REE - - - - 4 - - 4 - 4
Share of exchange differences of associates N3 - - - - 1397 - - 1397 - 1397
Total comprehensive income/fexpense) FR2EMA/(R)BE:
for the year, net of nl tax TNRERE - - - - 1401 - (48823) (47422) 3088 (44,334)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)) RI3% 17z 26(ali) 7,258 21,012 - - - - - 28210 - 28210
7,058 21,012 - - 1401 - (48.823) (19,152) 3,088 (16,064)
At 31 December 2017 (Note) WoB8-tE+ZA=t-R
(Hz) 43,546 356,513 2427 16,699 1,258 - (163,336) 257,107 25273 282,380
Impact on initial application of ERERHREER
HKFRS 9 EYivd - - - - - - (467) (467) - (467)
Adjusted balance at 1 January R=B-NF-A-R2
2018 e 43546 356,513 2421 16,699 1258 - (163,803) 256,640 25273 281913
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-N\E2ER%E:
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (38,967) (38,967) (3,109 (42,072)
Exchange differences on translation of BENIERIRERL
financial statements of foreign operations ~ [EXZEE - - - - (130) - - (130) (76) (206)
Share of exchange differences of associates ~ FEIREAATES 28 - - - - (661) - - (661) - (661)
Cumulative exchange gain redlassified o~ HEBALTREHHER
profit or loss upon disposal of associates B ZHEME - - - - (737) - - (737) - (137
Total comprehensive expense ERRERT
for the year, net of niltax TBERE - - - - (1,528) - (38,967) (40,495) (3,181) (43,676)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)(i)) eln BT (i 26(a)i) 7,360 4977 - - - - - 2337 - 32,337
Partial disposal of equity interest ShmEn-ANBAAZ
in a subsidiary (note 29(2) AR (ME29a) - - - - - 3 - 3 (1) 2
Acquisition of non-controlling WiEsEahEs
interests (note 29(b)) ([5E29(0)) - - - - - (102) - (102) 102 -
7,360 24977 - - (1,528) (99) (38.967) (8257) (3,080) (11337)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+ZA=t-R 50906 381,490 2421 16,699 (270) (99) (202,770) 248,383 2,193 210,576
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the Wit AEER-_Z—N\F—A—BYRERTEY KR
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). EARE 1558 BB BRELAESR - RIBEFME
BZBERE - WAEILBER o B2 °
The notes on pages 65 to 207 form part of the consolidated financial F652207H 2 MIFE BALRE BIIETRER 2 AR ER
statements. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &HZE—ZE—N\FF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB T/ )

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T 45
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FHET
(Note)
(BfIE)
Operating activities RETFR
Loss before taxation PR ATE 1R (43,534) (43,846)
Adjustments for: HE -
— Changes in fair value of contingent —EBREHIAREBEEZ
consideration assets for business combination NEEES - 17,971
— Changes in fair value of prepayment option —BEITRAELERNT
embedded in promissory note issued RAETEATES 116 721
— Changes in fair value of consideration —EBEHERNREZ
payable for business combinations N EE) 778 6,396
— Interest income from money lending —EEBHEMA (13,473) (14,759)
— Bank interest income —RITRLEMA 4 (3) -
— Gain on disposal of a joint venture —HE—FHAELE Y I 4 (12) -
— Reversal of impairment loss on loans and -~ EREFE
interest receivables B EE R 4 (371) -
— Waiver of amount due to a joint venture — BN —EAECEHIB RS 4 (14) -
— Finance costs — A 5(a) 2,513 2,412
— Amortisation of intangible assets — BB ERE 5(c) 12,836 13,438
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment —E - BEMREITE 5(c) 7,536 7,069
— Impairment loss on trade receivables — MR FREE B 5() 9 -
— Impairment loss on contract assets —AHNEEREEE 5() 3 -
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — H&¥% « BE KRB EE 5() 119 41
— Write-off loans and interest receivables — JHh S BT R R LB 5(c) 31 -
— Impairment loss on goodwill —EHEREEE 12 24,903 -
— Loss on disposal of associates —HEBE A REE 13 3,339 -
— Share of profits of associates — FE(EHEE AR T (1.376) (1,040)
— Share of profit of a joint venture —Eh—HaE ¥R = (€)
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net -EXEHTRIE (201) 4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &EHZE—ZE—N\FF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T 45
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE FET FHET
(Note)
(PE3E)
Operating loss before working capital changes &EE LB B~ ELEE (6,801) (11,596)
Movement in account with a joint venture —fHEEEEERE 24 -
Increase in contract assets BHVEELM (3,875) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  JEUTBE R 12 H b e sk
(), md (9,021) 6,374
(Increase)/decrease in loans receivable FEWE R ($2hn),w (11,681) 43,372
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables JFE A-F BR 20 N B A B A 3R
=i/ ) 436 (385)
Increase in contract liabilities EHBELM 6,735 -
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income EIERACRA), /1 (7,174) 2,973
Net cash (used in)/generated from operation BE(RA) /FELERSTEE (31,357) 40,738
Interest received from money lending REZEBFEFEMA 13,198 14,503
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREEMNER (95) (106)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE (A, FEL
operating activities BT (18,254) 55,135
Investing activities RETE
Expenditure on projects development TBERESH - (3,015)
Interest received EUCRLE 3 -
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WEER B AR 2R & im %58 - (41,442)
Payment for consideration payable EBAHERNRE
for business combination S ASRIA 27(f) (72,429) -
Payment for purchase of equity securities BERAFESFLH50E - (500)
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE  BE&REXN
plant and equipment I (2,235) (4,261)
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEBE A RFEHRIE 13 31,540 -
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture PE—HEECEMERIA 14 15 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BEX
plant and equipment BEETERIA 80 -
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsidiary HOHE—FHMBARMGEHRE  29a) 2 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFARSFE (43,024) (49,218)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &HZE—ZE—N\FF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB T/ )

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T 45
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FHET
(Note)
(BfIE)
Financing activities REEE
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid ENRMEESHSERTS (982) (772)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid EfRERERSH S (166) (172)
Interest paid BEAFLE (2,347) (2,240)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIR M PRI EIE 26(a) 32,337 28,270
Repayment of financial assistance from 18 R IR B R B
government = (114)
New loan from a third party RE—BEZFZFER 33,000 -
Repayment of loan from a third party BETRE-HFZER (28,000) -
Net cash generated from financing activities  B& FBFEHERE 33,842 24,972
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERBSZEWRD),/
and cash equivalents R EE (27,436) 30,889
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—RzBELRBALZEEY 42,389 11,500
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERgEyE (5) -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt+-ZA=+—HzEEK
REZSEYD 19(a) 14,948 42,389

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the MizE : AEBR_ZT—N\F—A—BYBREAEBNBR
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). HAERIFE 155 R BB B REERFEINE - BIBATE
BZRERZE  WAREIILLEER o B2

The notes on pages 65 to 207 form part of the consolidated financial FE65E207 8 2 MiE ARG E M I5RE 2 D

AN

statements. 77 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its
shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company has its registered office and
principal place of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and 21st Floor,
Henan Building, 90 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
and the Group's interest in associates and a joint venture.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated. Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

RNEER
BEAFEEEAERAR(IARA]) AR
MeHEsdMA Iz EREERAA
HEROEBEMEZSAR QA ([HEEZ
Fr1)GEM LT o KAz M S & E
T E B 2 Ik 5 Bl 2 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands }2
BB ETFHZEBEIFIRBERNE211E -

ARRRREER AR - ERBARZE
RET K EIS

BE-T-\Ft-A=t+-RILEEH
AMBRREESD T REHB L A (57
AIAREE ) AR AR EREE AR R

ABDRE NS -

BRBERAIN  GEMBERRATET
(TTETD2%® - B([BT]) BARRT]
ZHEEEB RAEE 2 2HE -

FESHBE

(a) ZHIEH
HEREUEHREACRIERE SR
fag([EEGTMAS ) EH A
EHEATBYIEHEERN ([ BB
HwEER D (REMBEARBNES
ERsREER] - HAEGER([ B
SRTEA ) RREBEZSE) BAY
BRI @R R ESR EHES 2
WEREMBRE - ZERAVHR
RIMETH R FTGEMEE %5 T8 8
([GEMETMRAI METE 2 MAEE
{63 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- Contingent consideration assets or liabilities arising from a
business combination (see note 2(f)); and

- Derivative financial instruments (see note 2(i)); and
- Investment in equity securities (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

(c)

statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 35.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's consolidated financial

statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 36).

2 FESTHBEE)

()

()

mRGE B2 BZE(H)

AEt RAAREERR G ERT - HEF
AEHETR Y EEL BB 2
HEAR - Rl EthEHERT S A
IR (EWERTHE B R oR R
RHBFE  ASEFLARERZ
HARE 2 R SR EA R ERR,

EIRERAR SRS ERIRFATIE
IR ARG ERTE Y HE
LARAGEH IR E 2 EBRR -
FEMIEE35RFT® ©
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7] - ERAEEE RS HRE R
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B IR AER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

68

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement”. It sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that
existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening equity at 1
January 2018. Therefore, comparative information continues to
be reported under HKAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 9 on accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.

2 FESTHBEE)

()

BXEHE(E)

BRI S IR ERIE 99 - 2
TA
BRPBREEUFEIRMAE LR
FHERIE395 [T A : #R
8| - RERFIBREER LA E
THEE  TRABRETIHEREA

BENEREZER -

AEBEREBEBEEREHN _-F
—N\F— A —HEBEEFEZEBENE
BEBVHREERFG - KEE
BRERVGRERZ 2512 - tEAY
T N\F-A—BEVEZZA
o Al - BERERSSHHELSE
39RERELEER -

TREMEEEEBIERELELE
IRHUN _—ZT—NF—A—BREFE
BoTE o

HK$'000

FHET

At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+&+-F=1+—H 163,336
Recognition of additional expected credit losses on R HA ARG 8 2 SR EERREINEE

financial assets measured at amortised cost FEBE 467

Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—A—B2ERBER 163,803

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition approach are set
out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
and at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"). These
supersede HKAS 39’'s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based
on the business model under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The following table shows the original measurement
categories for each class of the Group's financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amounts of
those financial assets determined in accordance with
HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.

TESBER(E)

() EXEHBFEE)

BB EERFEIS - T

TAE)
a. STREELREBEZSHE
(&)

TREJNEBGERF39%
BTAEEEREREEZR
AETEER  YHZELRE
ERBEE B G ERE395RE
TE Z R B SRR &8 B 75 1R
SEQESRAAEEE LR -

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying amount carrying amount
at 31 December at 1 January

2017 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018

BBEH BEEERE

ERI%398 ER%0%
R-Z-t% RZE-N\E
t=B=t-H -B-H
ZRAE ENAE BHiitE ZRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TATL Fi5n
Financial assets carried at amortised costs  IXESERAFIE Y $MEE
Trade receivables YR 2,398 - (14) 2,384
Loans receivable FER 96,948 - (444) 96,504
Interest receivables JEWHI8. 1,925 - ) 1916
101,271 - (467) 100,804
Financial assets measured at FVOCI RFVOCI(F I EE) ;&2
(non-recyclable) SREE
Equity securities (note) RAES () - 500 - 500
Financial assets classified as REBREHENEINIEA
available-for-sale under HKAS 39 (note) ~ #E 2 ERBE (fiT) 500 (500) - -
RIFFEEEEGR AR 69
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

70

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)
Note: Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held for trading were

classified as available-for-sale financial assets. These equity
securities are classified as at FVPL under HKFRS 9, unless they
are eligible for and designated at FVOCI by the Group. At
1 January 2018, the Group designated its investment in an
unlisted entity at FVOCI, as the investment is held for strategic
purposes (see note 15). Having assessed the fair value of the
equity securities at 1 January 2018, the directors concluded
that there was no significant impact on the Group’s financial
position and financial results upon initial application at 1
January 2018.

For an explanation of how the Group reclassifies and

measures financial assets and recognised related gains or

losses under HKFRS 9, see respective accounting policy
notes in notes 2(h), 2(m)(i), 2(p), 2(q) and 2(r).

Apart from the impact of transition described above, the

classification for the other financial assets and financial

liabilities measured at amortised cost remain the same,

which the carrying amounts at 1 January 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any financial
assets or financial liability at FVPL at 1 January 2018.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the “expected credit loss” (“ECL") model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, loans and
interest receivables and trade and other receivables),
and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note

2(0)).

Further details on the Group’s accounting policy for
accounting for credit losses, see note 2(m)(i).

The following table reconciles the closing loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKAS 39 as at 31
December 2017 with the opening loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 January
2018.
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

2 FESTHBEE)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () BHE EFE)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) BB LIRS EREI - 2t
TAG#E)
b.  Credit losses (Continued) b. {EEEEE)
Trade Loans Interest
receivables receivable receivables Total
MR, EHER RIS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FhHr FEn
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 RIEEBETTERE
under HKAS 39 R=B-t%
TZR=t-RzBiERE - - - -
Additional credit loss recognised at RZZ2-\F-A-REAZ
1 January 2018 BIMEER 14 444 9 467
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 REFEHBHREEREIR
under HKFRS 9 R=ZE-NF-A-HZ
gt 14 444 9 467

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services,
and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
consolidated financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

There is no significant impact on the Group’s financial position
and financial result upon initial application at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information continues to be reported

under HKASs 11 and 18.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes on

previous accounting policies are set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from contract in progress and
provision of services was recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally recognised at a
point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of

the goods had passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or service
in the contract. This may be at a single point in time
or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the following three
situations in which control of the promised good or service

is regarded as being transferred over time:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

a. Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

A.

When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced;

When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the
entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or
service at a single point in time, being when control has
passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only

one of the indicators that is considered in determining

when the transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant

impact on when the Group recognises revenue from sale
of goods and rendering of services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

b.

Licensing income

The Group has entered into a number of agreements
with individual third-parties (“Licensees”) under which
the Group grants the Licensees rights to use the Group's
intellectual properties (being the mobile games developed
and owned by the Group). In return, the Group is entitled
to recognise licensing income in respect of the use of the
Group's intellectual properties over licensing period or at
a point in time in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements. The Group also provides continuing
technical support to the Licensees for the mobile games
licensed.

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to determine whether an
entity’s promise to grant a license is a right to access the
entity’s intellectual property (with consideration being
recognised as revenue over time) or a right to use the
entity’s intellectual property (with consideration being
recognised as revenue at a particular point in time). Based
on the specific requirements under HKFRS 15, an entity’s
promise to grant a license is a right to access the entity’s
intellectual property when all of the following criteria are
met:

(@)  the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the entity will undertake activities that
significantly affect the intellectual property to which
the customer has rights;

(b)  the rights granted by the licence directly expose the
customer to any positive or negative effects of the
entity’s activities identified in (a) above; and

() those activities do not result in the transfer of a
good or a service to the customer as those activities
occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

76

b.

Licensing income (Continued)

Having assessed the terms of the related agreements
and the specific facts and circumstances, the directors
concluded that not all of the abovementioned criteria are
satisfied and hence the licensing income of the Group
should be recognised at a particular point in time when
the right to receive payment is established, which is similar
to the revenue recognition under HKAS 18. As a result,
there is no significant impact on the Group’s financial
position and financial result upon initial application at 1
January 2018.

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to consideration. If
the Group recognises the related revenue (see note 2(y))
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
for the promised goods and services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable,
is recognised when a customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. For a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis (see note 2(0)).

Previously, contract balances relating to contracts in
progress were presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position under deferred income. To reflect these
changes in presentation, regarding presentation of balance
at 1 January 2018, the deferred income of HK$7,174,000 is
now included under contract liabilities (see note 16).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

2 FESTHBEE)

() EXEHHFEE)
BB B BRI E 1557 - &
EPEIUERIZHA(E)

b.

RAREWRA (&)

LEHERE R ZE R RS E
EEURERE  EBEHE
o bMZEN R B I E
B - B AN S B 2 AR A e
FAHE S UCER SR IE AL ) B 2 S
FEREZER  mEEFE
GETERIF185RIE T 2 Wk i
RELL - B, - RZZE—N\F
— B — BYMATE B R E YA
SE SRR S EEE
[PEDN-Z -

BREERBEZZS
RIBEBE BT HmEERFE 15
9% ERAEEEA EG R
FMUEERER - 77 EREWR
R o RN S 7 A 4 (6 IR B
BHERE DR R 2 RER
R E (R MRE2y)) -
AIREBEZ BN BERENE
E o R RASEERAEH
WA - WEP I RESRIZ
AHHTEAEZNRE B ZRIE
ERE - AIZREBERAS
HaEmMIEENR - BHHEEP
Rl E—EAmE - BES
EBHNEEFEHIEGHNEBETF
BopmZHmHemms - TEE
AHMZANMEBEERANARE
T ERFEELEZY(RHF
2(0)) °

BE - BREETTANZAD
RBERINER A BT AOR R PIRIE
WAET 2 - BRIRZEFZ

AZHEHBREYME @ EEWRA
7,174,000 LR E A G &
BEET(RMEE16) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

d.

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.

The following tables summarise the estimated impact
of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, by comparing the amounts reported under HKFRS
15 in these consolidated financial statements with
estimates of the hypothetical amounts that would have
been recognised under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 if those
superseded standards had continued to apply to 2018
instead of HKFRS 15. These tables show only those line
items impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 15:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)
d. Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 as

TESBER(E)

(0 BXETHEE)
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78

a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018

(Continued)

WEHEBE

—E-N\F+=A
=t+—RHIEFEME
HET & - ()

I

Difference:
Estimated
Amounts Hypothetical impact of
reported in amounts adoption of
accordance with under HKASs HKFRS 15 on
HKFRS 15 18and 11 2018
(A) (B) (A)-(B)
g
BEEEET  RIE-NERS
REBRIBRE EHIE18%R EANEHEE
REE%  ENRHEL ERIE155 2
SHEE BREE PHE
(A) (B) (A)-(B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TAR TAL
Line items in the consolidated statement of RZE-NE+ZB=1-H
financial position as at 31 December 2018 SENBRREAT R
impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 15: BANBRERAE RN E L RA
Contract assets AEE 3872 - 3872
Trade and other receivables FEUER 3 2 PR ER 13,845 17,717 (3872)
Contract liabilities AtaE 6,735 - 6,735
Deferred income FEEMA - 6,735 (6,735)
Line items in the consolidated statement of B2-8-\E+-B=t-H
cash flows for the year ended LEERERERERY
31 December 2018 impacted by the SRAEERBRERE5H
adoption of HKFRS 15: YEER !
Increase in contract assets ABBELEN (3,875) - (3.875)
Increase in trade and other receivables TEIREE T R A RN (9,021) (12,896) 3,875
Increase in contract liabilities AEEEN 6,735 - 6,735
Decrease in deferred income ERBNBD (71.714) (439) (6,735)
The significant difference arise as a result of the changes EREBR LA S ERRESMELE ©

in accounting policies described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date
of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) arising from a transaction in which
an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction”
is the date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset
or liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the date of the
transaction for each payment or receipt should be determined
in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and the financial result
of the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

80

(e)

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

2(m)(iii)).

Associates and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement,
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint venture (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(g) and 2(m)(i)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group's
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(f) Business combinations

2 FESTHBEE)

() (BEEOF

82

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12, Income taxes,
and HKAS 19, Employee benefits, respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement
by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment
awards are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2, Share-
based payment; and

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations, are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(f) Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
held interest in the acquire; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

84

(f)

(9)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration arising from a business
combination for which the acquisition date is before 1 July
2014 and that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement, or HKAS
37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets,
as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration arising
from a business combination for which the acquisition date is on
or after 1 July 2014 and that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value, with the
corresponding changes in fair value being recognised in profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see note
2(d)) less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(m)(iii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are set out below.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at FVPL for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 27(f).
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

(@) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in the
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
accumulated losses. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h) Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

(b)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in equity securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVPL. Any
attributable transaction costs were recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

Investments which did not fall into the above category
were classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value
was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve
(recycling). Dividend income from equity investments
calculated using the effective interest method were
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity securities that did not have a
quoted market price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value could not otherwise be
reliably measured were recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note

2(m)(iii)).

When the investments were derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(m)(iii) — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity was
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the derivatives qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge the net investment in
a foreign operation, in which cash recognition of any resultant
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment
ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)

(iif)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings 12 years
Leasehold improvements 3to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computers and other equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable.

Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)
(iii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(m)(iii)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date when they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Development costs 3 years
Technical know-how 5 years
Programming codes 5 years
Online platforms 5 years
Software systems 5 years
Mobile games 2 to 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

0]

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or

assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a

series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an

evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(1)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 2(j). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(m)(iii). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(I) Leased assets (Continued)

(iif)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets
(@)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, loans
and interest receivables and trade and other
receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
note 2(0));

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the
ECL assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables, loans and interest receivables
and contract assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

92

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(@  Policy

applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

12-month ECLs

These are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date.

Lifetime ECLs
These are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments (including
loans and interest receivables), the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when:

(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or

(i)  the financial asset is 1 year past due.

The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal and
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the
Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(y) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model
was used to measure impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as FVPL (e.g. trade and other
receivables, loans and interest receivables and
available-for-sale investments). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment included:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESFHBEE)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) GEEEREERE(E)
(Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and () ZHTARAVEEZE
contract assets (Continued) EER(E)
(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued) by M=ZZE—NF—H—H
2 Ai3E A RIBUR (58)
the Group, for economic or legal reasons -  AEEEREER
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, EEEREEER
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market, economic or legal environment that SOERIRIR IR
have an adverse effect on the debtor or BEBARERAT

borrower;

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost; or

observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets
in the portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(2)  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets
in the portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) EEEREEHEE)
(Continued)
() Credit losses from financial instruments and () ZHTARSHEEZIE
contract assets (Continued) EE1E (&)
(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued) by HRZZE—NF—-H—H

98

If any such evidence existed, the impairment loss
was determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2(e)), the impairment
loss was measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its

Z B ()
HEEAREERS
B OREB RS EAT
ZES T LR

-  EREVBHRERE
AR
RAIMBERF
(RHE20e)) HE
mE - HEMiEE2(m)
(i) P 2t LA KL 48 &

carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m) AUk el & R ERE AR

(iii). The impairment loss was reversed if there EMEELE S Mt E

had been a favourable change in the estimates HRERE - 4/

used to determine the recoverable amount in LAZETE Al Uk [el & 28

accordance with note 2(m)(iii). (32 Bt 3£ 2(mGii) AT
i) 2 fEET 3R A
GRS - AR
EHRZBERS
18 o

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,

- BERASIRZER

the impairment loss was measured as the BRAFLFMS
difference between the carrying amount of Uiz emEE R
the financial asset and the estimated future E{EEE AR AR
cash flows, discounted at the current market MEME L EFIE
rate of return for a similar financial asset REREEE &
where the effect of discounting was material. ARRBEARTE -
Impairment losses for equity securities carried KRR @M ERIR
at cost were not reversed. Mz 2mEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(1)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows: (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss was measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting was material. This assessment
was made collectively where these financial
assets shared similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss was only recognised to
the extent that it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

100

(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

() Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(b)  Policy

If any

applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows: (Continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor,
borrower or other financial assets carried
at amortised cost was considered doubtful
but not remote, associated impairment
losses were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied that
recovery was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against the
gross carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses were written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables, loans and interest
receivables whose recovery was considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts were
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery was
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against these financial
assets directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt were
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
were reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm'’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognises a
provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees are
determined to be higher than the amount carried
in “trade and other payables” in respect of the
guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantees. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly since the
guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured. The same definition of default and the
same assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in note 2(m)(i) apply.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the
guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is the discounted using the current risk-
free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, a provision would be
recognised if and when it became probable that (i)
the holder of the guarantee would call upon the
Group under the guarantee; and (ii) the amount of
the claim on the Group was expected to exceed the
amount carried in “trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iif)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

intangible assets;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

(iif)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

106

(n)

(o)

Inventories
Inventories, which represent merchandises for resale, are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 2(y)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(m)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(r)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2(y)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note

2(r)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)
For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 2(y)).

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, amounts received before the related
work was performed were presented as “deferred income” and
the balance has been reclassified on 1 January 2018 as shown in
note 16.

Deferred income represented contractual billings/amount due
in excess of recognised revenue resulting from services yet
to be rendered or in respect of the unexpired terms of the
relevant contracts/arrangements, or for which the applicable
revenue recognition criteria were not yet satisfied. Revenue
was recognised and deferred income was released to profit
or loss when the relevant services were rendered or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the relevant contracts/
arrangements, or when the applicable revenue recognition
criteria were satisfied.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of loans receivable is expected
in one year or less, they are classified as current assets, or if not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit loss (see note 2(m)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(q) Interest receivables

(r)

(s)

(t)

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted
to borrowers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of interest receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit loss (see note 2(m)(i)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset
(see note 2(0)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(m)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for ECL in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in 2(m)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2(aa)).

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

110

(CONTINUED)
(w) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(w) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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2

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(w) Income tax (Continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, rendering services, interest income from
money lending and licensing of its own intellectual properties in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is transferred
to the customer at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(y) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Provision of software platform includes:

(1)  Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
when the goods are delivered to customers and
titles has been passed which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods;

(2) Software maintenance service income received or
receivable from customers when the maintenance
service contracts are entered into, which is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the maintenance service contract;

(3) Software rental and subscription income from
software application and website development
are recognised at point in time when the relevant

services are rendered; and

(4)  Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development deriving
from providing software application and electronic
learning platform to customers, which is recognised
over time when services are rendered. Revenue is
also recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
contract liabilities and deferred income over the

term of the service contract.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(m)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(y) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(z)

(i) Income from mobile gaming includes:

(1) Publishing income from online game platform
owners, which is recognised at point in time on net
basis from platform owners when the paying players
purchase the game credits for the mobile games
after deducting pre-determined commissions;

(2)  Service income from the provision of mobile games
development and related services are recognised
over time when the services are rendered in
accordance with; and

(3) Licensing income is recognised when the
performance obligations under the relevant
agreements has been accomplished.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets and liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2

116

SIG

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(z)

(aa)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on the acquisition of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantive period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(ab) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONTINUED)
(ab) Related parties (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(8)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONTINUED)
(ac) Segment reporting

TESBER(E)

(ac) 7EBHE

3

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services
supplied to customers from the provision of software platform,
interest income earned from the money lending business and
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income generated from mobile games development, as follows: BFTEAZWAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Provision of software platform REEEEs 18,603 14,561
Interest income from money lending EEBFEHBWA 13,473 14,759
Mobile gaming income FHBEEIA 21,892 35,144
53,968 64,464

BFREEEERAR 119

F3 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

3

120

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, which

are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating decision-
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

Software platform — developing and marketing of
patented server based technology and the provision of
communications software platform and software related
services.

Money lending — provision of money lending business
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which
is a money lender licensed in Hong Kong under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Mobile gaming — game publishing, development of
mobile game, application, related intellectual property and
platform, and provision of related solutions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTHIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WEkDHBEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEHHE(E)
(i)  Business segment ()  EFESE
2018
“E-N\§
Software Money Mobile
platform lending gaming Total
L) Wi FHRiER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET T T
Disaggregated by timing of RiEEIREES
revenue recognition
Point in time RE R 8,050 - 19,340 27,390
QOver time BE R 10,553 13,473 2,552 26,578
Revenue from external customers REMRER 2 Was 18,603 13,473 21,892 53,968
Reportable segment profit HEDHEH
("adjusted EBITDA") (note 1) ([ AZEBITDA]) (H3E1) 1,265 11,697 14,316 27,278
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 11 714 12,850 13,675
Write-off of loans and interest receivables {381 & 7 K A S, - 31 - 31
Impairment losses/(reversal THEE ZREER/ (RES
of impairment losses) on: BiEE) -
~ contract assets ~ANEE = = 3 3
— trade receivables — YR 9 - = 9
—loans and interest receivables —ERERRFIE = (371) = (371)
Income tax (credit)/expense FiEH(Ee) /Bx - 4 (1,466) (1,462)
Reportable segment assets RENHEE 4,608 117,438 60,274 182,320
Additions to non-current assets FERBBELN 7 1,713 16 1,736
Reportable segment liabilities IRELHER (6,641) (73) (11,104) (17,818)
RIFREEEERA A 121
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e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

3

122

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

3 WBmkoa®RE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) T EIHE(E)
() Business segment (Continued) () EBELE(E)
2017
“E—tF%
Software Money Mobile
platform lending gaming Total
gH¥a & FiizRl st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT AT TAT
Disaggregated by timing of EHERINEED
revenue recognition
Point in time RE R 6,272 - 22,752 29,024
QOver time BEER 8,289 14,759 12,392 35,440
Revenue from external customers (note 2) RESNER P 2 Yias (k) 14,561 14,759 35,144 64,464
Reportable segment (loss)/profit BEERE 78T
("adjusted EBITDA") (note 1) (T AZEBITDA ) (H3E1) (5,526) 13,211 21,616 29,301
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 771 468 12,950 14,189
Income tax (credit)/expense FERi (%) /X (99) 16 1,972 1,889
Reportable segment assets RENHEE 4,044 124,799 59,626 188,469
Additions to non-current assets FERBBELN 72 312 3,103 3,487
Reportable segment liabilities RELsHER (7,197) (416) (11,489) (19,102)
Note 1: The measure used for reporting segment profit/loss is MisEt - B3RO ELEFESEmERA
“adjusted EBITDA”, i.e, “adjusted earnings before interest, Z it 2 R[S FHEEEBITDA] -
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where “depreciation BITBRFIE - BiH - TER
and amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses BSEADER ] - ERMTER
in non-current assets. SR ABRIEERDE
EZRERAE -
Note 2: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative MizE2 : AKEERAZRATFEERY

effect method. Under this method, the comparative
information is not restated and was prepared in accordance
with HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 (see note 2(c)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

3

(CONTINUED)

(ii)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEKSEHERE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEPH#HE (&)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) AIHEDE Kz - Ba
profit or loss, assets and liabilities BEREEZ#8
2018 2017
—E-NF  —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FT
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue Al E o HB U R 53,968 64,464
Loss for the year FEBR
Reportable segment profit AR o # A 27,278 29,301
Impairment loss on goodwill [BEEAEY a2 (24,903) -
Loss on disposal of associates SR A RESE (3.339) -
Share of profits of associates FE(EEG & N RNE 1,376 1,040
Unallocated corporate income and expenses 7R R 2 A K& BisZ (42,484) (76,076)
(42,072) (45,735)
Total assets EEAE
Reportable segment assets AR E DI EE 182,320 188,469
Interests in associates N =N £ - 34,901
Unallocated corporate assets AOMELE 142,464 182,360
324,784 405,730
Total liabilities aEAH
Reportable segment liabilities AR EDMBEE 17,818 19,102
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOETEER 36,390 104,248
54,208 123,350
BIFFEEERBFRAR 123
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

3

124

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly
include changes in fair value of (i) consideration payable
for business combination; (ii) contingent consideration
assets for business combination; and (iii) prepayment
option embedded in promissory note issued, staff costs
and legal and professional fees of head office. The
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities mainly include
goodwill, property, plant and equipment, deposits and
prepayments, deposits paid for purchase of property,
plant and equipment, consideration payable for business
combination, obligations under finance lease and interest-
bearing borrowings. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of
performance assessment and resource allocation.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Geographical information and major customers
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and interests
in associates and a joint venture (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in case of property, plant and equipment, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in
case of intangible assets and goodwill, and the location of
operations, in the case of associates and joint venture.

3

Wa R o AR & (&)

()

7B (AR

(i)

M@ EX R FEES
Ti’%%ﬁ’iuﬁfa(')ﬁilﬂiﬁﬂ\
Bz R(i)AEE 2 Y
% CBEREE - BEAE -
RELRREE NG RASD
¥z#Em([ETERBDEE])
FifEs@ 2 B8 - I8 EIERE
BEFEHEIZE EERATE
2 (AE - BEREEM
=) BEMEHE(AEE
EMEEME) REEMTH

!E(M%ﬁ%“ RadhiEm
EDEb
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREF 2 W& EEFRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
SF-N\F T LF ZF-N\F T LF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T &t FHExT FHET

Hong Kong B 33,883 59,811 176,597 219,858
Mainland China PR A4 19,678 27 14 5
The Netherlands T - - - 34,901
Others Hib 407 4,626 - -
53,968 64,464 176,611 254,764

Others mainly cover Taiwan and Europe.

EMETREAE BN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTEIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WEkDHEHRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEHHE(E)
(iii)  Geographical information and major customers (i) B EXNTEEES ()
(Continued)
Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted REFERFZHE(EEY
for 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: B4 E10% 3 A F) #5140
™
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Customer A ZEA N/A* R Rt 7,000
Customer B ZFB 19,566 N/A#AS 3 R #
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of # MW ES TME B E10%
the total revenue. LA ©
4 OTHER INCOME, NET 4 HtACEE)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank interest income RITHFBEUA g -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—RAaeE I 12 -
Reversal of impairment loss on loans FEWE TR KT B 2 R EEE#E
and interest receivables 371 -
Sundry income FETEWA 703 336
Waiver of amount due to a joint venture EN—EEEDERBZEHE 14 -
1,103 336
126 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BR B AT 5 18

BRI IRE R T 5 &IA -

(a) Finance costs: (a) HEAK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Finance charges on obligations under BE TR EAIENI TS
finance leases EH 166 172
Interest on other borrowings HERFE 2,347 2,240
2,513 2,412

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration

(b) ETHFX(BEEENE (A

(note 7)): 7)) :
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&T T
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - TEREMET 20,347 28,542
Contributions to defined contribution EE "R E
retirement plan H 891 1,405
21,238 29,947
BETESEARATR 127
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTEIR)

5

6

128

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)
(c) Other items:

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment
Impairment losses on:

— contract assets

— trade receivables

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Operating lease charges: minimum lease

payments

Write-off of loans and interest receivables

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong

Provision for the year

Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years

Deferred tax (credit)/expense

(note 23(b))

Origination and reversal of

temporary differences

Actual tax (credit)/expense

5 PBRELATEE (&)
) EmER :
2018 2017
= % T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
ZEETEN S 850 966
mILEERE 12,836 13,438
Y - B KRB
e 7,536 7,069
THER Z R EEE
—BHBE 3 -
— FEURER TR 9 -
HEME - BE&
B2 BB 119 41
WERMFEY - &K
AHFIA 5,098 5,289
s EU E TS 31 -
6 SABBRZFEH
(a) HZEBEmiHENE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
BIEARiIE — /&
INFERAE 715 58
NAFERETRCBERE) 4 (42)
719 16
EEHREER), X
(Mt5E23(b))
ELERBOER =5
(2,181) 1,873
ERHIEGRR) FAX (1,462) 1,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents: (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Hong Kong Profits Tax

In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced
a two-tiered profits tax rate regime by enacting the
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018
(the “Ordinance”). Under the two-tiered profits tax rate
regime, the first HKD2,000,000 of assessable profits
of qualifying corporations (Smart City Technology
Limited (“Smart City”), a subsidiary of the Company is
the qualifying corporation) is taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The
Ordinance is effective from the year of assessment 2018-
2019.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rate regime
(2017: a single tax rate of 16.5% was applied).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) for the year.

No provision for Enterprise Income Tax of the PRC has
been made for 2018 as the subsidiaries incorporated in
the PRC have estimated tax losses for the year (2017:
HK$Nil).

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions
Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, the

Group is not subject to income tax in Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

6

REBBERZHAEH(E)

(a)

HERm R ZHEE - (F)

(1)

(i1)

(i)

EBFF

R-Z—NFZF  FERF
FMH2018FHi % (1£5]) (F3
SROERBI (a2 &B 1) - 3| AR
SRS - RBEFISHME
B ABEREE(RAT—HE
MEARSERMREERA
A EE8HM]) BEE®RD
%) 51 152,000,00078 T &R
A Z R B8.25% - MeR T
JERTER 2 T EB16.5% o
ZEE —_E—N\FE_ZT

—NFZRBFEEER -

Al #H2_FT—N\F+_-A8
ST ALFEZEBFER
BETIRERSHMAHETE
(CE—tfF  RAE—HE
16.5%) °

B ATIE R

RER - RAZEARLME
([P B ) sEM AR S 2 B A R
BT R 25% B4 R B (> Z Pt
BR(ZZ—F : 25%) °

PR o R S22 B 2
AU AL (A5 B8RS B
B IR =B\t
B0 2 49 B A (= B
— b ET) ¢

B FH R rl AR A7

5
REBFAESHARERG - A%
EHAHMNASHEREER
LERE ([ RBELES DG
T o
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

6

REBBERZAEH(E)

(b) ZEBAHEE 25 H
Bil Rk -

130

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Loss before taxation bRE R AT (43,534) (43,846)
Notional tax credit on loss REBEEMEHE
before taxation at Hong Kong KRB AIEBEC AR
statutory tax rate (note) fRmEiE e (FsE) (7,348) (7,234)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR MBRS 2 G2 5,433 2,256
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBMAZ BB & (232) (56)
Tax effect of unused tax losses B AR R ARE ARG EE
not recognised Db 4% 657 1,961
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not ERBEAERARIEEE Y
recognised previously % (851) -
Tax effect of temporary differences not ARG 58 2 TR %
recognised =% 647 857
Effect of difference tax rates of subsidiaries LfENSIRN G v -2 228 4,147
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years LA EEBETE,CBERE) 4 (42)
Actual tax (credit)/expense ERHEHER) X (1,462) 1,889

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2018, the notional tax is calculated
in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rate regime under which
tax on the first HKD2,000,000 of profits from Smart City, a subsidiary
being a qualifying corporation for the year ended 31 December 2018,
is calculated at 8.25% and tax on the remaining profits is calculated
at 16.5%. For the year ended 2017, a single tax rate of 16.5% was
applied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the GEM

Listing Rules are as follows:

7 EEMe

RIBEB R RIEDIE383(1)1& - REl(FHE
EEMZER)RIIFE 28R GEM E TR A
B ESMamT

Salaries, allowance and Retirement scheme
Directors' fees benefits in kind contributions Total
EEHe §e - 2HRENHR BIGTEMT @t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\F Tt ZE-N\F T ZBE-\f —T-F B\ —T+F
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
AR TEL AR TEL TEn TEL TEn T
Present directors REEE
Executive directors HEs
Chan Kwun Chung (note 1) FEA(E) - - 807 557 18 14 825 571
Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (note 2) i) - - 651 - 17 - 668 -
Ng Kin Man (note 3) RN (M) - - - - - - - -
Non-executive director FoTES
Zheng Yonggiang (note 4) B (HiEa) - - 60 - - - 60 -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Fok Kin Fung Eric ERE 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Lee G. Lam (note 5) M (Hiks) = - = - - - - -
Leung Man Chun Xl 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Pang Siu Yin (note 6) EREB (o) 115 - - - - - 15 -
Former directors HEES
Executive directors HTES
Hung Tat Chi, Alan (note 7) RER (W) - - - 79 - 4 = 83
Mui Yuk Wah (note 8) BEE(MHs) - - - 132 - 5 - 137
Wong Chi Yan (note 9) BEE(9) - - - 754 - 15 - 769
Chan Wai Kit (note 10) BREG(FzE10) - - 547 1,080 15 18 562 1,098
Independent non-executive director BUFHTES
Lee Nim Wai (note 11) o) 5 120 - - - - 5 120
360 360 2,065 2,602 50 56 2,475 3,018
BETESEARATR 131
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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132

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Appointed as executive director on 20 March 2017 and appointed as chief
executive officer on 1 October 2018

2. Appointed on 5 February 2018

3. Appointed on 1 March 2019

4. Appointed on 1 October 2018

5. Appointed on 1 January 2019

6. Appointed on 15 January 2018

7. Resigned on 20 March 2017

8. Resigned on 20 March 2017

9. Resigned on 12 October 2017

10. Resigned on 1 November 2018

11. Resigned on 15 January 2018

No directors waived any emoluments during the year (2017: HK$Nil).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017: three)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate
of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2017: two) individuals

REHFMAL

RAGZRRFMALES  ME(ZFT—t
FZR)EEZMEFIENMETRE -
HEHtp=%(ZF—tF : MB)ENALZ

are as follows: <& BREWNT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e kHMmHS 1,727 1,171
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRETEIMR R 54 36
1,781 1,207

The emoluments of the other three (2017: two) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following band:

H=2(—F—tF: mA)RaFHmMz
BERIALZBENFIATEE :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE EE A
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 3 2
9 LOSS PER SHARE 9 BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREXER

The calculation is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$38,967,000 (2017:
HK$48,823,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of approximately 1,215,172,000 (2017: 1,084,166,000)

in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 is the same as the basic loss per share as there

were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

(b)

BRERBRDERARBIHEE A
JiE {5 4 2 &5 18 38,967,000 7% T ( —
T — 4 1 48,823,0008 7T ) M F
NEBETEBR 2 IMETHHLY
1,215,172,000 g ( = & — £ &F :
1,084,166,000%) 51 &

FREEERS
HAREEEMETEEE#TE®
g #H#HEZE - N\FER_ZT—+tF
+ZA=+—ALFEZERESE
BEFREAEEAER -
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e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTIITR)
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% BERRE
Computers
Land and Leasehold Furniture and other Motor
buildings  improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
ERER
1HRER  RENREE HAR%E Rftte hat: @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TE#R TE#R TE#R TER TER
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t45-A-A 49,484 2,581 614 1342 1,005 55,026
Additions NE - 956 2,528 241 5478 9,203
Disposals L& - - (54) ) - (57)
Exchange adjustments NERE - - - 8 _ 8
At 31 December 2017 and RIE—tFT-A=+-BR
1 January 2018 “Z-\$-A-A 49,484 3,537 3,088 1,588 6,483 64,180
Additions NE - - 504 59 1,672 2,235
Disposals tE - (42) (144) (165) - (351)
Exchange adjustments HNERR - - - (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\§+-A=1-H 49,484 3,495 3,448 1,476 8,155 66,058
Accumulated depreciation 2HIE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tE-fA—-H 2,405 107 124 927 322 3,885
Charge for the year REEHR 4124 1,063 440 282 1,160 7,069
Eliminated on disposals PN ER L - - (13) 3) - (16)
Exchange adjustments INEZR - - _ 8 _ 8
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tE+ZA=T-BR
1 January 2018 ~Z-/\f-A-H 6,529 1,170 551 1214 1,482 10,946
Charge for the year NEENG 4124 1,086 669 166 1,491 7,536
Eliminated on disposals R ERSHE - (17) (42) (93) - (152)
Exchange adjustments HNERZ - - - (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1-H 10,653 2,239 1178 1,281 2,973 18,324
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1—H 38,831 1,256 2,270 195 5182 47,734
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-R=1-H 42,955 2,367 2,537 374 5,001 53,234
134 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, land and buildings of the Group with
carrying amount of HK$38,831,000 (2017: HK$42,955,000) have been
pledged to secure interest-bearing borrowings granted to the Group
(see note 21).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, additions to motor vehicles
financed by new finance leases were HK$4,942,000.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of motor
vehicles held under finance leases was HK$3,394,000 (2017:
HK$4,490,000).

All land and buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong under
medium-term leases.

10 ¥% - BEK&ZE(E)

R-Z—-N\E+-A=+—8 AEE+
i R AEF 2 R E38,831,0008 T (=&
—+ 4 : 42,955,000/ 7T ) BT AEER
REBEE 2 M B ER(RHEE21) -

HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HILFE -
LA & E R E /R E £4,942,00008

JC ©

RBEHR  RERESEIHEFAEZ
BR E 1B 43,394,000 L ( —ZF — £ F -
4,490,000/ 7T) °

IBEAREE 2 L RBFAREE - AT
HIHLAEHS A -
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e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A TTEIR)
11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1M1 BREE
Development Technical Programming Mobile
costs know-how codes games Total
BRAL BiAE BAGE FHRER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Tisn TiEr FiEn Fi5n
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (b))
(M) (MizH(b) (MEE(b) (FiEE())
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF-F—-H 2,178 1,023 1,988 66,768 71,957
Additions through internal BRNPERAE
development - - - 3,015 3,015
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+-A=+-BR
1 January 2018 - )\f-A-H 2,178 1,023 1,988 69,783 74972
Write-off (note (d)) (M) (2,178) (1,023) (1,988) - (5,189)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-\F+-A=+-H - - - 69,783 69,783
Accumulated amortisation Rt BHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2017 R=Z—+%-A—-H 2,178 820 1,589 - 4,587
Charge for the year RERMR - 203 399 12,836 13,438
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—t4+ZA=1T-AR
1 January 2018 “Z-\#-A-H 2,178 1,023 1,988 12,836 18,025
Charge for the year REENR - - - 12,836 12,836
Write-off (note (d)) HisE (M) (2,178) (1,023) (1,988) - (5,189)
At 31 December 2018 WZE-NE+-A=1-H - - - 25,672 25,672
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1+—H - - - 44111 4411
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+$+-A=+-H - - - 56,947 56,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

1"

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Development costs represent expenditure incurred for developing
electronic software products that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(k) and
are internally generated.

All of the Group's technical know-how, programming codes and
mobile games were purchased as part of business combinations
in prior years.

Expenditure incurred for developing mobile games has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(k).

The amortisation charges for the year are included in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

On 31 December 2018, the management realised that certain
electronic software previously developed does not fit to the
requirements of the customers and does not generated as much
revenue as previously expected. As a result, all the development
costs, technical know-how and programming codes with nil
carrying amount were written off.

1"

BEEER)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BRANEREESFERMERAES
ZRX  AERXEREBEHRE
(P RE2(K)) HERR RS I RPEEAE ©

AEBHERIAY  RXEERT
BEBERBETEFRE BEBA
B -

B3 F e B 2 B X EARIRBTRE2(K)
PR & At BURHR ©

REZHHFX LA AGEBRRRA
Z [f7fx ] o

R-F-\F+-A=t—H BHE
ERSBERZEZETEFRMHLS
MeTEPERAREELINER A
Mz Weas o Bt - EMEEAE LER
EEZERAA - SATAEMEAE
Ll DN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTEIR)

12 GOODWILL 12 B8
2018 2017
—E- N\ T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Cost 2%
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HBEt+=-—BA=+—H 109,669 109,669
Accumulated impairment HEHRE
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Impairment loss EEE 24,903 -
At 31 December nt+-—A=+—8H 24,903 -
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December Nt+-—A=+—8H 84,766 109,669
Impairment test for cash-generating units containing BEBEECHETELEVZHENR
goodwill o
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") BESREAEEREBELELERR R&
identified according to country of operation and operating segment as EnHBIcREELEBN([REELE
follows: fir]) - FIEWT
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FiT
Software platform — Hong Kong (“Unit A”) PHTe—-FB(EBRAD 20,236 20,236
Mobile gaming — Hong Kong (“Unit B") Fperl—HB([EzB)) 64,530 89,433
84,766 109,669
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

12 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 12 BE(E)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (Continued)

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 as follows:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the value-
in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes the
discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets approved by
the management covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 17.0% (2017: 20.0%) that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2017: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the market.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the CGU
are as follows:

Budgeted market The values assigned to the assumption reflect
share past experience, except for the growth factor,
which is consistent with the directors’ estimation
of the revenue from existing and potential
customers. The directors believe that planned
revenue growth per year for the next five years is
reasonably achievable.
Number of service  In order to maintain successive business
contracts operations of the CGU, the directors believe that
there is no particular difficulty in renewal of the
service contracts of the existing customers in the
CGU.

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

BEBECHZELENZHER
# (&)
EEXCREBEBESENEFEHNHE
ZBREE - AR

E7A

R&EE BNz A RE S ERIERA AR
FRBEZTEET  BEREBEREM
HEREA TR MREE 2 B HIRIR
SRE - ARRMIRETISYH SEERE
BzE RS EEBMEERR ZFAT
BRIRR4)17.0%(=ZF— L% : 20.0%) °

REEBE RS RERAENEEEE
HERERERBERTE 2 BHREE
to BBRAFHCRERECHERABTEF
BRER3I0%(ZE—+HF :3.0%)HHF -
ZERTBENS REPFHERR -

ReEERZ EMRENHFBZEE
BRI ¢

BEMSNHE REEEBERRBE
RROERARKIN) - 8E
EHRERBEREETFPZ
Wesa PriEfbat—2 - EH4E
& RRAFZEFAEMK
SIERAAEER

RIEEHBE REFRSELEUFEL
BEY - BEMAE BER
TELBUTRETPZR
B K A R B o

EERR TREERBEKE T ERKRN
BEAEEA “EERREEL
Bz RAEBABEAWEESTE -
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e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

12 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

140

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (Continued)

Unit B

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the value-
in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes the
discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets approved by
the management covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 26.1% (2017: 22.2%) that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2017: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the market.

The recoverable amount of the CGU for the year ended 31 December
2018 has been referenced to the valuation report prepared by Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited (2017: International Valuation Limited), an
independent professional valuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

12 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (Continued)

Unit B (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the CGU
are as follows:

Budgeted market
share past experience, except for the growth factor,

The values assigned to the assumption reflect

which is consistent with the directors’ estimation
of the revenue from existing and potential
customers. The directors believe that planned
revenue growth per year for the next five years is
reasonably achievable.
Budgeted income It includes estimated income from existing
mobiles games and mobile games in the pipeline,
taking into account game popularity, income
patterns in the game life cycle, industry growth
and the Group's strategy in operation. The
directors believe this budgeted income is justified
given the strong game development capability
and experience of games, the cooperation with
major third-party distribution platforms and the
historical record of developing its games.

As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount of Unit B
calculated based on value-in-use was approximately HK$64,530,000
which has been lower than its carrying amount of HK$89,433,000
by approximately HK$24,903,000. As a result, the management
realised that the performance of mobile gaming business under Unit
B was worse than expected due to the tough market competition.
After the assessment on the respective date, the management
determined to recognise an impairment of Unit B in respect of the
decline of operating performance. As a result, an impairment loss of
HK$24,903,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

12

EE(E)
BEBECHESELENZHEN
&)

BE7B(#E)
ReECEM Y FREEHEMAZEE
EETUNNE

BETS BRRAEEEBERBRBEL
(BF-: B (ERARRKI) - HER
HWRERAMBEEEP 2 W
PRYEfAEt—2 - EEMAE - K
RAEFZ BFFEWEERA

BEER -

BREKRAEREFHRERLER
PR HEELZ AEHRA > B
EapBEIZ WAER - 1THRIE
RRAEBEZEERRE -&F
BE - ERBEERFREE
KiEess  MEIBE=T7D
BB EA MR E
SLRCEE - HUETRTAEWARS
g o

W_ZE—-—NE+-_F=+—8  HBE
FREEFEZEMNRAREESEH A
64,530,000/ 7T + B H ARM1E89,433,000
7B TR #924,903,00058 7T - EIt - EEE
ZiHE  ARTEEFER - BB Fi#
PERIEFRIVBENTES - £EH B LA
FHhE - BEERTEMEERE TEME
REBAIBZAE - EIt - EREREBmEE
B E1E24,903,000/8 7T °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

13

142

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

13 REE QT zEmS

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —T—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

At 1 January = E—=Ig 34,901 -
Additions NE - 32,464
Share of profits of associates il 715 2,437
Disposals e (35,616) -
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—8H - 34,901
Share of net assets EIEEEFE - 12,929
Goodwill [EEES - 21,972
- 34,901

On 13 April 2017, the Group, through Profile Venture Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire equity
interest in Stars Ventures Limited (see note 28(a)). Stars Ventures
Limited indirectly owned 49% of the equity interest of each of the
following entities, which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market price is not available. These entities are regarded as associates
of the Group and are accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

RZZE—+tFMNA+=H " AEEEB
Profile Venture Limited (7" A & — & & & Hf
B A 7)) Y8 Stars Ventures Limited 2 36 A%
R (R HMI3E28(a)) ° Stars Ventures Limited
BEHBEATHEER 249%BE(ZEEE
BIELTMOETE  HUWEMSRE) - 1t
LTEBWEATNEB AN RIBEBE
ARSI A B REALR

Particulars of

Place of incorporation issued and
Name of associates and business paid-up capital Principal activity
BENTEH FE AR 3L I S 4t B ERITHERAFE FERETH
Fore Freedom B.V. (“FF") The Netherlands 18,000 shares of  Construction and management of
EUR1 each fibre optic internet networks
Fore Freedom B.V. ([FF]) Gl 18,000/% 3% 15 R BN
FRR1BT B BB AEAR
XXLnet B.V. (“XXLnet") The Netherlands 80,000 shares of Provision of internet,
EUR1 each telephone and other
ancillary services
XXLnet B.V. ([XXLnet]) i 80,0000% A% 17 RHERE  EEX
FRI1EUT Hb AL E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

On 21 September 2018, the Group disposed of the equity interest in
FF and XXLnet (the “Disposed Associates”) and all the obligations,
liabilities and debts owing or incurred by the Disposed Associates
to the Company to an independent third party (the “Associates
Purchaser”) for a cash consideration of EUR3,433,000 (equivalent to

HK$31,540,000).

Summarised financial information of the former associates of the
Group is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the former associates’ financial

13 REE QT 2= (E)
RZZBE—-N\FAA-+—8  KNEEUR
& (83,433,000 7T (48 & 731,540,000
BB —EZBIE=H(HMERTEN])
HEFFEXXLnet ([ B S AR ]) 2%
EREHEME N RERAQRKES

ZHBEML  BERE

AREBREE AR 2 MBEERBEESIM
T AT ER B ERAE 2 A RIRE
FEMBHREENRR M BEREATE

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. FERS
2017
—E—tF
FF XXLnet Total
FF XXLnet 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET
Current assets MENEE 1,747 1,205 2,952
Non-current assets IEMENEE 45,863 801 46,664
Current liabilities mENaE (5,288) (532) (5,820)
Non-current liabilities ERHARE (17,410) - (17,410)
Net assets AEFE 24,912 1,474 26,386
For the period from 1 January For the period from
2018 to 21 September 2018 13 April 2017 (date of acquisition)
(date of disposal) to 31 December 2017
B-E-\E-f-HZE BZZ—tFMAT=AKERE)Z
“E-\FRACT-R(LERHD)HM “E—tET-RZ+-AHH
FF XXLnet Total FF XXLnet Total
FF XXLnet ast FF XXLnet &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR Tin Tisn Ti5n
Revenue 8,634 6,302 14,936 7,521 5,287 12,808
Profit for the period 1,497 131 2,808 1197 926 2,123
Other comprehensive (expenselincome HAt2E (), A (1,157) (193) (1,350) 2,754 98 2,852
Total comprehensive income 340 1,118 1,458 3,951 1,024 4,975
BETESEARATR 143
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 13 REE QT 2= (R)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the Pt E R EE R — i—ti-i—* H
carrying amount of the interest in the former associates recognised in =T+ — B 26 M mERAHERN A&
the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017: NAIZ ERIREE HER

FF XXLnet Total
FF XXLnet #Eat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET
Gross amount of net assets of the BtEAREEFEZ
associates 4 %A 24,912 1,474 26,386
The Group's effective interest AREBER#EZR 49% 49% 49%
The Group's share of net assets of the AEFEGEE QAR Z
associates BEFE 12,207 722 12,929
Goodwill BmE 10,193 11,779 21,972
Carrying amount in the consolidated mEMB®mER L
financial statements BREE 22,400 12,501 34,901
Loss on disposal of associates for the year ended 31 December 2018 is HE-_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFEH
summarised below: %Hﬁﬁ%@ ﬂ%?ﬁ 2
2018
—E-N\FE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received 2HRIE 31,540
Carrying amount of associates B AR Z BREE (13,644)
Goodwill EES (21,972)
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified to profit or loss HEBREARBENSEEER Y
upon disposal of associates REHIE N s 737
Loss on disposal & &8 (3,339)

144
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

14

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

14 R—EEELEEDS

2018 2017

=EF-N\F —F—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FiT

Interest in a joint venture R—HEeEE I #ER - 3
Amount due from a joint venture B —HE& &b FERIE = 10
- 13

On 6 February 2017, Top Banana Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, established Grand Surplus HK Limited (“Grand Surplus”)
with two other joint venturers. Grand Surplus is incorporated in Hong
Kong and is principally engaged in website development and related
services.

On 28 February 2018, the Group disposed of all of its equity interest
in Grand Surplus for a cash consideration of HK$15,000 to Kwong
Wing Heen, Gabriel resulting in a gain on disposal of a joint venture of
approximately HK$12,000. Kwong Wing Heen, Gabriel is one of the
key personnel as defined by the Group. Therefore, Kwong Wing Heen,
Gabriel is considered as a related party to the Group and disposal of
Grand Surplus to him constituted a related party transaction.

Gain on disposal of a joint venture for the year ended 31 December
2018 is summarised below:

RZZE—EFZARB  aEGRAR(—
HEEE2EWB LR BAMMEE SR
2 3K 37 Grand Surplus HK Limited ([ Grand
Surplus |) ° Grand Surplus 2 & 78 5% fift 5K
S EEREHEERERBRERE o

RZFE-—NF_A=Z+N\H  AEENUR
© X8 15,0008 7T [n) BPZEEF I & E A Grand
SurplusZ 23 et EEHE e &
EWELI12,0008 T - EEE AAEE
FTRERBAB Y — - At - BPESFHE
ARNEE 2 BB AT - MHEEHEGrand
Surplusf& Rk BaEf A £32 5 ©

BE-T—\F+-A=+—ALEEH
® P BB WA -

2018
—E-N\F
HK$°000
TExT

Consideration received
Carrying amount of interest in a joint venture

Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—

BHHRE
—HEZLERESZRAEE (3)

15

E A6 12
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15

146

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES 15 BEEFEHZRE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E-N\E S
+=A=+-8H —HA—H +=-A=+-H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FTEx FAET
Equity securities designated at EEEBHMEEKE
FVOCI (non-recycling) RFVOCH( R TEE) 2
B E %
Unlisted equity securities I ETIRAES 500 500 -
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESREE
Unlisted equity JE TRk - - 500
Upon the initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (see RZE—-—NF—A—BAEREREETH

note 2(c)), the investment in available-for-sale equity securities was
reclassified as equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling).
Such investment is the unlisted equity securities to Metro Rainbow
Limited, a company incorporated in BVI with its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Online Troop Company Limited, (together “Metro Group”)
with 5% equity interest. Metro Group is engaged in online shopping
business. The Group designated its investment in Metro Group at
FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investment is held for strategic purposes.
No dividends were received on this investment during the year (2017:
Nil).

Having assessed the fair value of the unlisted equity securities at FVOCI
(non-recycling), the directors determine there was no material changes
in fair value of equity securities for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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(#:18[ Metro Group ) 2 5% AN 2 FE
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets

16 EHNEERAE
(a) BHEE

2018 2017

—B-N\E —FtF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Arising from performance under licensing [BITRT Al HEFTEE A

arrangement 3,872 -
The Group recognises revenue from licensing arrangements at AEERFEABRERARER A
a point in time upon the Licensees have the rights to use the BEEBANER BB GEENIRTA]

Group's intellectual property and the Group has conditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set out in

the licensing agreements.

(b) Contract liabilities

AR AN
B FERKERT

(b) EHERE

R AE 2 B
AIREZHE 2 W

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-N\F —E—+F
+=A=+-AH —HA—H +=ZRA=+—~H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Note)
TET TR FET

(B =)

Billings in advance of performance  [TIRIS& 4E FEL

under IT service contracts AW KIE 6,735 7.174 -

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018 and,
accordingly, an amount of HK$7,174,000 was reclassified from
deferred income to contract liabilities.

Mt - AEBEERRARFFEENSEBE

BT HEE

E-NF—
HRME

AERIEN59E - WHAERZ
B—HZE&H - it
7,174,000 JL R IBE B

RERAEHDBEANEIE -
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(AETTHIR)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 16 SHREEREEE)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Contract liabilities (Continued) (b) EHEE(E)
When the Group receives a deposit before the service 2N 2 [ 7 AR 78 R 46 AT U BUIR B 1 -
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of BARSENANRBRELSYR
a contract until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds & B2 BB ERRGBBEE
the amount of the deposits. The Group typically receives a SRR o  AEBE—REREETE
certain deposit, which is negotiated on case by case basis with ® AR EENTREBEORNS
customers, on acceptance of IT service contracts. REBRERIERER R
The movements in contract liabilities are summarised as follows: BHBABEZEBFAMNT
2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January m—H—H 7,174
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising BAREFRNERZ WSt A
revenue during the year that was included in the REVZENBEBEERAY
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year B &R (3,448)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing in BRITARTE & 4018 T B A TEIEIR
advance of performance under IT service contracts EBHAHABEEN 18,164
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising BAREFANERZ Wamzt A
revenue during the year was included in new contract RERZIHEHNBREER
liabilities entered during the year ERBERD (15,155)
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8H 6,735
148 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BURIRR KR HE MR
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE-N\F —E—+F
+=A=+—8 —A—B +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note)
THERT FTHERT FHET
(Bf=E)
Gross amount of trade receivables FEUCBR T 42 5B 4,200 2,398 2,398
Less: Loss allowance R SRR (23) (14) -
4,177 2,384 2,398
Deposits and other receivables Be RAEMERE 8,347 1,702 1,702
Prepayments AN 1,315 698 698
Amount due from a key IR EIE A B 2 08
management personnel 6 49 49
13,845 4,833 4,847
Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment as at 1 January 2018 MIEE : AR BB EREERIEIE - DT
was made to recognise additional ECLs on trade receivables (see note 2(c)). RIZBE—N\FE—A—BZFEVRAE  UfE

Wik REREIMNE R RER(RME2(0)

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables, apart from certain e R1440008 (=T — 5 :
deposits of HK$144,000 (2017: HK$996,000), are expected to be 996,000/ 7T ) 2 & TIEEI - AEEME
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. FEUGBR TR S B JE U GR - FEEARI N —F A

Yo Bl st HER AT

The amount due from a key personnel is the balance due from Kwong FEUBAS B IR A B 2 FUE R U B AE 2
Wing Heen, Gabriel, is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on B ZFIEEER - TETERRENRE
demand. B o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17

150

(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss

PR W B o I Lt P Wi R ()

(a) KBS
RIRE BB R - BUERFIRIEE
ZEHHRIIREEREZEHERE

allowance for credit losses, is as follows: BRE DM ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAEL
Within 1 month PR—EA 2,847 775
More than 1 but less than 3 months BiE—EABINR=EA 804 1,372
More than 3 but less than 6 months BBE=EAEDRNEA 460 131
More than 6 but less than 12 months BiENEARLRT @A 66 104
Over 12 months +=@ANE - 16
4177 2,398

Trade receivables are normally due on presentation of billing or
within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the
Group's credit policy are set out in note 27(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

18 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the money
lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding loans and interest receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.

31 December 2018
Z2-N\f+ZB=t-R
Loan Interest
portion portion Total
EX®s  HEHD @z
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

18 BWRERRFE
AEE 2 BB RS B AR A2 EH

BRANBEARBEERZRNEXRBME

B o REE IR EREERKRERKLA
BBREARIES - URERDEERMR -
BEMREHEREEENES

1 January 2018 (note) 31 December 2017
- N\F-B-A(H) ZE-tETZA=T-R
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
Ex®s  HEHD & &5 flEEs st
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TER TER TR Tén TEn TEn Tin TiEn TEn
Secured loans by personal quarantees AR 7 EAEH 56,004 991 56,995 44,500 1,59 46,096 44,500 1,59 46,0%
Unsecured loans BEEEH 52,595 1,208 53,803 52,448 329 52,171 52,448 329 50,717
108,599 2199 110,798 96,948 1,925 98,873 96,948 1,925 98,873
Less: Loss allowance B EERE (80) @ (82) (44) © 453) - - -
108,519 2197 110,716 96,504 1,916 98,420 96,948 1,925 98,873

Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment as at 1 January 2018 Mt MIRMEBHBREERFEOHRE - DHET

was made to recognise additional ECLs on loans and interest receivables (see
note 2(c)).

RZZB-NE-—A—BZEVRE Utk
WER LA EERBEINEHEEBE(RN
F2(0) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

18 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

152

(CONTINUED)
Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 10.0% to
58.9% (2017: 10.0% to 42.0%) per annum and repayable on maturity
date under the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in
writing by the Group.

(a) Ageing analysis
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due date:

18 BWERKRFNE (&)

2018
—E-N\§
Loan Interest
portion portion

ExHa  ANEHD
HK$'000  HK$'000

R EFKIEFFENT10.0%E58.9% (=
T—+4 : 10.0%542.0% )8 - WHA
SRR HARES R BHGERIIZER

TRIEE o

(a) fREDHT
BRECHITIRIEA FEIH AR -

2017
—E—+F
Loan Interest
Total portion portion Total
#Bst EXHH MNEEH st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TET TET TET TET THT THET

Neither past due nor impaired ERHARE 108,519 2,197 110,716 96,948 1,886 98,834
Less than 1 month past due wELR—EA - - - - 39 39
108,519 2,197 110,716 96,948 1,925 98,873

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference
to historical information about counterparty default rates. The
existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.

In respect of loans and interest receivables which have been
past due, the amounts mainly represent occasional delay in
repayment and they were fully settled subsequent to the end
of the reporting period. Accordingly, the management is of the
opinion that no impairment allowance on these individual loans is
necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 RERBELSESEYREMERES

CASH FLOW INFORMATION nEER

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank (a) HARRITRFEEELZELR
and on hand. REEMEY -
As at 31 December 2018, the cash and cash equivalents of RZE—)/\F+_A=+—H K&
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted BEUARBE(TAREDFEZERS
to HK$818,000 (2017: HK$100,000). The RMB is not RIS E{EA818,0008 L (==&
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under —-t 4 :100,000/7T) - ARET
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and REEREREEMEE - A BiE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign PR A3, 2 AN B B AGR11 LA R A BEE
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EEMMNIEEERTE @ NEBERERB
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct BREEITINERED 2 RITH AR
foreign exchange business. R REMEE -

BEFEEEBERAA 153
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

154

(b)

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

19 BERBESFEYRAMES
REEM(E)

(b) TERBFIAEEROBEEHZEMR

B8 (DERSRIRLBY)FHE -

ARAEDEE AEARRSRE

SARRLREREAEEEARS

RERTHRAREEDNE RS

s = =
mEZAlE -

Financial
assistance Interest-
from Finance bearing
government leases  borrowings Total
BB BIRE MEHE W EER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT THET FAT
(note 22) (note 21)
(FizE22) (FtsE21)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-+&-8-H 114 - 28,000 28,114
Changes from financing cash flows: METHELSRELE
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid BRRERERS 2 AET
7 - (772) - (772)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid ENBERERS 2 FIBE
n - (172) - (172)
Interest paid BRFE - - (2,240) (2,240)
Repayment of financial assistance BRI BIRE
from government (114) - - (114)
(114) (944) (2,240) (3,298)
Other changes: Hi 25 :
New finance leases NEMANE - 4,942 - 4,942
Finance charges on obligations BERERE/REER
under finance leases - 172 - 172
Interest on other borrowings Hi BRI E - - 2,240 2,240
- 5114 2,240 7,354
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F
+=ZA=+-H - 4,170 28,000 32,170

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

(b)

19 RERRSEEYREMRS

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) REER(E)
(Continued) (b) &)
Financial
assistance Interest-
from Finance bearing
government leases  borrowings Total
BREBIRE BERE HEER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FaET THET THET
(note 22) (note 21)
(F22) (P3E21)
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\E-H-H - 4,170 28,000 32,170
Changes from financing cash flows: RETBHRLSRERE
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid ENREREEE 2 RS
) - (982) - (982)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid B EEHRERS 2 FE
n - (166) - (166)
Interest paid 2RFE - - (2.,347) (2,347)
New loans from a third party RE—EE=HZHER - - 33,000 33,000
Repayment of loan to a third party M—RE=HEBER - - (28,000) (28,000)
- (1,148) 2,653 1,505
Other changes: Hit 25 :
Finance charges on obligations REMERE/REER
under finance leases - 166 - 166
Interest on other borrowings Hi B8 - - 2,347 2,347
- 166 2,347 2,513
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+-f=1—
g - 3,188 33,000 36,188
RIFREEEERA A 155

F3 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21

156

All trade and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as
income within one year or repayable on demand.

20 BNRRREMEEMNRK

P & AN RR AR S EL A FE A SRR RS 10 — 57
WBERERRBBASIREREE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

HK$000 HK$'000

THERT FBT

Trade payables FERTERR 1,415 325
Accrued charges and other payables BT B A R EMENR 1,969 2,623
3,384 2,948

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018, the interest-bearing borrowings represent a
loan of HK$33,000,000 granted by a finance company to a subsidiary.
The loan was secured by the Group's land and buildings with a
carrying amount of HK$38,831,000 and corporate guarantee from the
Company. The loan carries an interest rate of 10% per annum and is
wholly repayable on or before 26 November 2019.

As at 31 December 2017, the interest-bearing borrowings represented
a loan of HK$28,000,000 granted by a finance company to a
subsidiary. The loan was secured by the Group’s land and buildings
with a carrying amount of HK$42,955,000 and corporate guarantee
from the Company. The loan carried an interest rate of the Best
Lending Rate from Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited plus 3% per annum and is wholly repayable on or before 24
November 2018. The relevant loan agreement did not contain any
repayment on demand clauses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

22 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22

At 31 December 2018, the Group had obligations under finance leases
payable as follows:

BEHERRE
R-ZB—N\F+=A=+—0 A%EA
B2 RARERENT :

2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—+fF
Present value Present value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
BERE EERE HERE ERE
SIERE SIEAE TURE(E TR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FET TET
Within 1 year —FR 1,030 1,148 982 1,148
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERER 1,506 1,564 1,030 1,148
After 2 years but within 5 years MERZRER 652 663 2,158 2,227
2,158 2,227 3,188 3,375
3,188 3,375 4,170 4,523
Total future interest expenses RRFIBHL B (187) (353)
Present value of lease obligations HAEAERE 3,188 4,170
BighBEEEBRAR 157
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTEIR)

23 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX BALANCES 23 IEZEF{1E R ENEARI 1 &85
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HZEHMBMIEEZEEHHEE -

financial position represents:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FAEBANERZ
for the year BiE (715) (58)
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT SRS 92 59
(623) 1
Represented by: B RPSEERT
Current tax recoverable ATz El BIARRR IR = 1
Current tax payable FERBNEATIE (623) -
(623) 1
158 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

23 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX BALANCES 23 EZEFHERENEABIEE LR (F)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised (b) EEZZEEHELE BF
The component of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RIFAMIERARRER IR IBE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E/(AR)SBHRERNEBH 250
movements during the year are as follows: T~

Fair

Depreciation Tax value

allowance  allowance  adjustment

in excess of  in excess of on

therelated  therelated intangible
Tax losses depreciation amortisation assets Total

Deferred tax assets/ EEHBEE/ BERBTE BANEESE EBKEEZ
(liabilities) arising from: (BE)EZ£R: REBE HERE 2BERE ATERER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TR THL TAT TAL

At 1 January 2017 RoZ—+F—f—A 4793 (15) - (11,116) (6,338)
Credited/(charged) to profitor loss ~ RMEzET A/ (%) (3,597) 4 (497) 2,217 (1,873)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+=f=+—

1 January 2018 BR-Z—\&—H—H 1,196 (11) (497) (8,899) (8,211)
Credited to profit or loss iSEEEUN 52 11 - 2,118 2,181
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

+-A=1+—A 1,248 - (497) (6,781) (6,030)
BigFHEBEERAF 159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

23 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has cumulative tax losses
of approximately HK$63,203,000 (2017: HK$65,201,000).
Of which, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses to the extent of approximately
HK$7,565,000 (2017: HK$7,250,000). The Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the remaining tax
losses of approximately HK$55,638,000 (2017: HK$57,951,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Of the total
unrecognised tax losses, HK$4,865,000 (2017: HK$4,288,000)
will be expire within 5 years and the remaining tax losses of
HK$50,773,000 (2017: HK$53,663,000) have no expiry date
under the current tax legislation. Other temporary differences
are not material.

24 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

160

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

The employees of a subsidiary in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the relevant
local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiary is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic salary of
its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and
2017 in respect of the retirement of its employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting regarding the termination of the old share
option scheme which was adopted on 25 November 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant share options to the eligible
participants including any employees, directors, suppliers, consultants,
agents and advisers or any person in the sole discretion of the board
of directors for the primary purpose to recognise and motivate their
contributions to the Group.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the New Share Option Scheme and the definition
of “Invested Entity” be added to the New Share Option Scheme
(" Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme”).

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of the
Company, the maximum number of shares available for subscription
under Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
option scheme adopted by the Company is subject to:

(i) The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of its
issued share capital from time to time; and

(i) The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under Amendments to the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of the approval of Amendments to the New Share
Option Scheme/at the date of passing the relevant resolution in
general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in general meeting
of the Company.

25 LRABEEZRORS

RZF-—=FRANA  ARARKRE
FAERBAMRILEBRESS([ER
PRMEETE | DR - EE=F+—A_+Hh
BB 2 BRRESR - WIRAFIBRER
B([FBREE D) - Bt ARFES
gARERNAER2EE (BERE &
= fiEn  HAEE - RERERSE

BERRBREZEMAL)REBR
# BESEMABRREHAKREELR
& o

RZZ—R"FEAZ+NAB  AAAIRK
RERIRE DEEERRER - HHBER
BTN AER2EE IRIREER|Z
FEEETIERT LA B AR B ([
PRt BIERT ) -

BIFR AR BRE KRG L ERRAE - R
B BERT BHE AT AR BIRM 2 (ETE
A BIIE T A RE 2 = IR &
BRERIATEIA

()  ARARIREFERETBEFTAR
G OPARSEIEtiul- e o e ftprd
FE BRI TR RS A RE RS T 2 AR
BIRMHEE EBR - TMSEBAETRFE
BIIRAZ30% : I

(i) REBFBEES BUERT RAEB R
HADRBAAERT 178 TR 2 A BB
REETTRFS AR BT 2R B H A K
TEBENHERET ISR B E
ZBH/HERERNBRASER
B2 BB ETRMZ10% -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

162

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Any grant of options under Amendments to the New Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates must be approved by
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the proposed grantee of the options).

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares
at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the
Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration for a grant
of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the board of directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board of
directors providing that the price shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on GEM as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the offer, which
must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the shares on
GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the shares.

The total number of share option that could be granted was limited
to 127,264,000 shares at par value of HK$0.04 each, representing
approximately 10% of the total issued shares of the Company on the
date of passing the resolution to refresh the New Share Option Scheme
limit at the annual general meeting on 25 June 2018.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme was granted or outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

25

URAEE 2R 5 (&)

REBEHMBRESFEETAARRES - £
ETHAERTIERRIKRETBEZHE
ARLEBAE - DARBIIFRTESR(T
BREANG REREEZEARAZ B
HITES ) -

REE+ @A K mARAREERR
BN TEETRRES A2 EMNHE
AT 2 A ERRE - BB E BTG
0. 1% RBEGRER L ARz S ERHK
M B2 ) B385,000,000/8 7 * HBRAK
NARRA S _EERRRALAE ©

BRERLEZAIRROBREZZAN
MEET28 H MR - AR AR LB AE
ZRER1.00ETT - RHBRE ZITEH
BREZSEE

BRETEEDHESTIET  ETEE
TRERATRSE  EZFERLAHW
AR5 B )N ME R RERAEKD
RGEMZ T {E + ()EEZAR T A S
RER 5 BE RS A |ERMABAMO R
GEMZFHUTIE + M mEE -

AR AR AR SN B PR 5 127,264,000%
BREE.MMBITLZEM  ER=ZZ—N\
FARAZTRHARRBERSRBETH
BREASIZAREEBARRZ BT
MER HBEEXI10% ©

HEz_Z-—-\Fk-ZE—ttF+=A
=+ —HLEFERTEREEBRETS
TR ENS ET IR S R TTE 2 BB
e o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Share capital

()  Authorised and issued share capital

26 EXKiRAE
(a) BE

() JEERBREITIRAK

Number
of shares Amount
RGEAR &8
‘000 HK$'000
T FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares B
At 1 January 2017, RZZT—tF—H—H-
31 December 2017, —E—+F+-_A=+—H"
1 January 2018 - )\F—-A—HXK
and 31 December 2018 of - N\F+=ZA=1+—H
HK$0.04 each FRMEEC.04E T 3,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
Ordinary shares B
At 1 January 2017 of RZE—tF—H—H
HK$0.04 each BREEO0.044E T 907,200 36,288
Issue of shares (note (ii)) & 103517 (B EEGi)) 181,440 7,258
At 31 December 2017 and REZ—tF+-A=+—HAK
1 January 2018 of —ZE2-N\F—-HA—H
HK$0.04 each SHME{E0.04E T 1,088,640 43,546
Issue of shares (note (jii)) st 317 (B (Gii)) 184,000 7,360
At 31 December 2018 of R-E—-N\FE+-_A=+—H
HK$0.04 each FIEE0.0475TT 1,272,640 50,906
BETESEARATR 163
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(a) Share capital (Continued)

164

(i)

(iii)

Issue of shares in 2017

On 10 January 2017, the Company issued 181,440,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each pursuant to a placing
under general mandate at a price of HK$0.16 per
ordinary share, resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$28,270,000.

Issue of shares in 2018

On 25 April 2018, the Company issued 184,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each pursuant to a placing
under general mandate at a price of HK$0.18 per
ordinary share, resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$32,337,000.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall in the ordinary
course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution from
shareholders in the form of interest-free loans. The
amounts are estimated by discounting the nominal value
of their non-interest bearing loans to the Group at current
market interest rate for similar financial instruments.
An early repayment of interest-free loans represents a
reduction in contribution from shareholders and reduces
capital reserve accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)  Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company and

the Group's former subsidiary.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

2(2).

(v)  Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the excess of the
consideration received for the disposal of 20% equity
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary over the increase
in the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests of
HK$3,000; and (ii) the excess of cash consideration paid
for acquisition of additional interests in non-wholly owned
subsidiaries over the increase in the carrying amount of

the non-controlling interests of HK$102,000.

(c) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to

finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments as to the capital structure in

light of changes in economic conditions.
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

166

(c)

(d)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes obligations
under finance leases and consideration payable for business
combination), less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an
ongoing basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the recommendation
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as
well as the issue of new debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$207,064,000 (2017: HK$233,998,000).
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by
the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, contract assets and loans and interest receivables.
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks for

which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

(1)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group has a concentration of
credit risk as 48% (2017: 27%) and 81% (2017: 64%)
of total trade receivables and contract assets was due
from the largest customer and five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payment history,
financial position and other factors. Trade receivables are
due within 30 days from the billing date.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

168

(i)

27 UKERBREEREMIANF

B(%&)

(a) EEEE (&)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) () JEUERI RS ATEE (&)
The following table provides information about the TERREEBREBEAEENR -Z
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade —\FE+ZA=+—HHEK
receivables and contract assets as at 31 December 2018: BRAMEYNEEMARZEE
ks RIBEEEEE &R
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
EHEEE REAE EERE BRERE
% HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
% TER TER TERT
Contract assets BHEE
Current (not past due) mE(REER) 0.07% 3,875 3) 3,872
Trade receivables FEUR R
Current (not past due) mE(REER) 0.07% 2,849 ) 2,847
Less than 1 month past due wHER DR —1E A 0.14% 530 (1) 529
1 to 3 months past due B — ==& A 0.29% 571 @) 569
More than 3 but less than 260 BB = 1 A
6 months past due BLRNMEA 0.59% 168 (1) 167
More than 6 but less than pab-iy R EVA(EDS
12 months past due BLR+—_{@AR 1.17% 66 (1) 65
More than 12 months past due wEIFRA+ — @A 100.00% 16 (16) -
4,200 (23) 4,177

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience in
current year. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions

over the expected lives of the receivables.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see note 2(m)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018). No impairment losses were recognised on
trade receivables for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that were neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as at
31 December 2017 were as follows:

27 MBEBEEREMIAQYF
B (%)

(a) EEEE (&)

()

JEWIRF R &I B ()
EEEERIE39RE N2
RZTB-N\FE—A—BA &
EFEREELRREZZTEE
& (RME2m)0) - =F—N
F—A—BIERZEE) K
TERAR -BE_ZT—+F
ToA=T—BIEFERERL
U AR TR E B 1R -

Ro®—tF+-B=t—
B - WERIS AR AR
2R BB AT

HK$'000

FHT

Current (not past due) mEh(REH) 775
Less than 1 month past due 8 B P — 1 A 1,159
1 to 3 months past due mE—=={EA 317
More than 3 but less than 6 months past due R = B AR D RNEA 87
More than 6 but less than 12 months past due BRI EARDR+ @A 44
More than 12 months past due B ERRE A —{E A 16
2,398

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no loss allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 BKEREEREMIAEAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEREE(E)
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) ()  JEUREZ e & A9 & E (&)
Movement in loss allowance in respect of trade receivables JERBRF R G X B E 2 EiE
and contract assets: e
Trade receivables  Contract assets Total
JEUTAR R BREE mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT TAT
Balance at 1 January 2017 and BIEEES4ERIZE395%
31 December 2017 RZZ—tF—-F—-BK
under HKAS 39 —Z—+E+ZH
=t+—HAz#&H% - - -
Additional credit loss recognised RZZE—N\F—A—H
at 1 January 2018 BRRZEIMEEEE 14 - 14
Balance at 1 January 2018 REE BT HiREER
under HKFRS 9 BORN =T —N\EF
—A—BHZz&H% 14 - 14
Impairment losses recognised FREHERZRE
during the year 518 9 3 12
Balance at 31 December 2018 BIEB BB HRE 2L
under HKFRS 9 BORN T —N\F
TZRA=t+—HZz&H% 23 3 26
No significant changes to estimation techniques or REREBRE - A A RR
assumptions were made during the reporting period. BELREAEY -
170 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating

- external credit rating (as far as available)

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations

(i1)

27 MBEBEEREMIAQYF
B (%)

(a) EEEE (&)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

172

27

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other financial assets (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group'’s

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
5l

Definition of category

HRIER

BERREEREMITAAF
E(&)

(a) EEERE &)
(i) EfhzmEE#)
A 2 RS E R A
iR 2 BRPELT -

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

BAHEEBERECRIAEE

Stage 1

Stage 2

2R

Stage 3

FEIEER

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon origination.

EERE B V)P HER AR AR H IR AR
MEREERTALREERE AR -

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired.

FEERERE 8 V)T HERIARLIRAIEEINHE
WARHBREERMEZ BR -

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have
occurred.

W3 EHZEE 2 B RRREREET
M8z —IHRZIAEN - BIRERTER
HIREERE -

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

MEREART A AR EENE 2]
el 2 AHE IR 2 TEREE R

5 -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.

HERR I E R F HIN 2 TR B R 18 (BN R &k
TEMEEZERFH) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the
gross carrying amount.

TR Al A 4 BAA) 2 TR HA RS 1R 30 FE R B IR
MRS (R BE) T IEBR A & B
AETE M B a -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Other financial assets (Continued)

(A)

Loans and interest receivables

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted approximately 24% and 45% (2017:
28% and 55%) of the Group’s loans receivable
balance respectively as at 31 December 2018.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising
from the loans receivable is significantly mitigated
by the collaterals held, if required. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from other
receivables and loans and interest receivables are set
out in notes 17 and 18 respectively.

Gross amortised cost amount of loans and interest
receivables

Having assessed the loans and interest receivables
under the ECL model, the directors concluded that
there had not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon origination. As a results, the loans
and interest receivables at 31 December 2018 and 1
January 2018 are classified as stage 1.

(A)

27 BKEBREEREMIANF

=B (&)
Hith 2 EE (E)

FERE R FI S

B FHRAMBITMAT A
& 2 B BME A E
BR=—_FE—N\F+=A
=t+t—HZREKER®
BH24% N A5% (- &
—+4F 1 28% N55%) °
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FRARK o RSB MR
ELAKEEHEER
B 2 ATAAIFELR -

B AN 5 B E R
A I e U E 3R R R B
MEZZEERRZE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTEIR)

27

174

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Other financial assets (Continued)
(A)  Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
Gross amortised cost amount of loans and interest

27 UKERBREEREMIANF

B(%&)

(a) EEEE (&)
(i) EtteMEEE)

A)

PR E TR A B (4]
FE U E SR N W) B 2 3

receivables (Continued) A BRE(88)
Movements in the gross amortised cost amount of U E R & F B 2
loans and interest receivables were as follows: A BERE BT ¢
HK$'000
FET
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-—N\F-—RA—Bz#&# 98,873
New originated TEA 48,256
Repaid during the year RERERE (36,300)
Write off b€t (31
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\FF+_A=F+—HBH2Z&EH 110,798
Arising from: EEg:
— Loans receivable —EWER 108,599
— Interest receivables — U B 2,199
110,798
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Other financial assets (Continued)
(A)  Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
ECL allowances of loans and interest receivables

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL
allowances is as follows:

BRREEREMITAAF
E(&)

(a) FEmEAEE)
(i) EftzmEEE)
(A EREREFNE(E)
e E T EA B 2 B
EEERREE
HERHEEBRERE
ZEBEHFTMOT

Credit losses  Impairment
allowance allowance
under under
HKFRS9 HKAS 39 Total
RIEEAI
2R REEE
FIR 2EH£R|
=8 E395E 2
EEEE ERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT FAT
Balance at 1 January 2017 and RIEE B S5 4ER|ZE395
31 December 2017 RZZ—+tF—-HA—-HBR
under HKAS 39 —E—+F+-f=+—-H2
i - - -
Additional credit loss recognised RZZE-N\F-A—HEERZ
at 1 January 2018 BIMEEEE 453 - 453
Balance at 1 January 2018 RIEB B HREERFEO5
under HKFRS 9 RZZE-N\GE—A—Bz#&H 453 - 453
Credited to profit or loss RE&FTA (371) - (371)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\FF+ZA=+—HZ
et 82 - 82
Avrising from: EEH
— Loans receivable —ERER 80 - 80
— Interest receivables —EWFE 2 - 2
82 - 82
RighBEEEARAA 175
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Other financial assets (Continued)

176

(B)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables. The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit losses on
a timely basis. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has assessed
that the expected credit loss rate for those
receivables is immaterial under 12 months expected
losses method. Thus no loss allowance for other
financial assets at amortised costs (including amount
due from a key management personnel) was
recognised.

No significant changes to estimation techniques
or assumptions were made during the reporting
period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Other financial assets (Continued)

(B)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, the Group managed
and analysed the credit risk for each of the new
and existing borrowers before standard payment
terms and conditions were offered. If there was no
independent rating, the Group assessed the credit
quality of the borrower based on the borrower’s
financial position, past experience and other factors.
For loans principal exceeding a predetermined
amount, the Group held collateral against these
loans and interest receivables in the form of
guarantee executed by the guarantor. Individual
risk limits were set based on the value of collaterals
provided by borrowers, if required, and internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by the
directors. The credit quality classification of loans
receivable and their respective interest receivables
using the Group’s credit rating system was set out
in the table below:

(B)

27 BKEBREEREMIANF

(a) EEEE (&)

At 2 & (&)
AP AN D) B 2 EL A
CRMEEE)

ARG ERE395EA
TZHEER

RZZE-NF—-HA—H
Al - REERREHRIZE
SR R R RT - B
BREOIHFIGMIREE
RABRBZEERR -
BB AR - AEE
SENERAZB B
o BELRREMEA
RAHEERAZEEREE
= WAL HBBEEE
ERZERME - A&
BAERARL 2 FER
A% SR E R R
FEMR SR BRI o
18 71 12 Bz BR BEAR % 5 5K
ARFEZERm(NF
B)IZBENRERES
REMRE Z WEF KSR
AT ARE - AKX
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

178

(ii)

(B)

27 UKERBREEREMIANF

B(%&)

(a) EEEE (&)

Other financial assets (Continued) () BtemEEE)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued) (B) I HHRLAFIBE Y H At
EREEE)
Comparative information under HKAS 39 FE e =B B 395 1T
(Continued) TZHERER(E)
2017
—ELF
HK$'000
TATT
Performing RS 98,834
Doubtful IR 39
Loss =t -
98,873

The Group considered the loans and respective
interest receivables as doubtful if the repayment of
principal and/or of interest had been overdue and
principal, accrued interest and/or future interest
might not be fully secured by the collaterals. The
Group considered the loans and respective interest
receivables as loss if the repayment of principal and/
or of interest had been overdue for more than 12
months and the collection of principal and/or of
interest in full was improbable.

The Group estimated and recognised impairment
losses for the loans and interest receivables
considered as “doubtful” and “loss”, taking into
account of the fair values of collaterals which
were inadequate to cover the loans and interest
receivables. The amount of doubtful and loss of
loans and interest receivables were HK$39,000 as at
31 December 2017.
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e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Other financial assets (Continued)

(B)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39
(Continued)

The Group performed collective assessment of the
loans receivable considered as “performing” by
grouping together all its receivables with similar
credit risk characteristics. The impairment review
was carried out on all those loans and interest
receivables based on the historical impairment
rates. Since the historical impairment rate was zero
during the current and prior year, the management
therefore considered that the collective impairment
loss was HK$Nil as at 31 December 2017.

The amount of provision for impairment was
monitored by the management on a monthly basis.

(B)

27 BKEREEREMIANF

(a) EEEE (&)
At 2 & (&)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

27 MBEBEERETMITAQYF
B (%)

(b) Liquidity risk (b)) FGEELEE
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible NEBRNAER L ESEATEERT 2
for their own cash management, including the short term HeEE  BiEReRB IR E
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover RIEMERAENERESEE -
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly EEVHREFTHEEERHESS
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains Ko ARG T EHESHERLES
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of FEES  UWENHEEHEEERS
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer BEEEN o
term.
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRINTAEE 2 © R B BN RS S
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial MR 2 TETAZIEE - THER
liabilities, which is based on contractual undiscounted cash flows DiT4 RS A E(REFERET
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates WFMEAE 2 F B RIAE - s A%
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting B BIiBERE B A RS 2 IR 1T H
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay: R E) A RAEE A e ERAAR
ZE&FHE
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2018 amount cash flow  on demand 5 years
BAIAKREER —FREH SR—F
“E-NF+=ZA=t-H REE HLRELH FRER ELREF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TERT
Trade and other payables e BR R R E A R RR 3,384 3,384 3,384 -
Obligations under finance leases BhE S A 3,188 3,375 1,148 2,227
Interest-bearing borrowings MBS HER 33,000 33,275 33,275 -
39,572 40,034 37,807 2,227
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

31 December 2017

“E—tF+tZA=1+—H

27 MBEBEEREMIAQT
B (%)

(b) HEBELEE(E)

Total More than

contractual Within 1 year but

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow  on demand 5 years
EAINAREE  —FA5H SR—F

FEE ReRER® REEFR  BAIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET TET TET

Trade and other payables JE 8RS E A P 3K 2,948 2,948 2,948 -

Obligations under finance leases AR EEE 4,170 4,523 1,148 3,375

Interest-bearing borrowings RPSRETA 28,000 30,053 30,053 -
Consideration payable for EBEUERRE

business combination 71,651 75,900 75,900 -

106,769 113,424 110,049 3,375

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from loans
receivable, consideration payable for business combination,
obligations under finance leases and interest-bearing borrowings.
Borrowings issued at fixed rate and variable rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored

by management is set out below.

() FEmEME
AEEZANXERBREIZREEEKE
R EBAHEMNRE  BEHEEA
ERMEER - ERMFRERS
SEEDRIERZ ATENZRR &R
SREMNEXRR - EREREAEE
ZRIEBEAHIIIT
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e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate profile () FIEAES
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRFFM AR E EAR L REFA
the Group's interest-earning loans and interest-bearing SEFEERKMEMERZF
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. RMAEE o
2018 2017
“B-N\f —Z—tF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate % HK$'000 rate % HK$'000
BRAE% TET BIRFIE% THET
Net fixed rate deposits EEERTE
Loans receivable ERER 10.0% - 58.9% 108,519  10.0% - 42.0% 96,948
Obligations under finance leases AT ERE 3.5% -4.8% (3,188)  3.5%-4.8% (4,170)
Consideration payable for business EBAGHEN
combination RE N/ATER - 7.3% (69,000)
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 10% (33,000) NATER -
72,331 23,778
Variable rate borrowings FEER
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER N/ATRER - 8.0% (28,000)
Net exposure Bk R 72,331 (4,222)
182 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$Nil (2017: HK$117,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

(d) Currency risk
The Group'’s business activities and its assets and liabilities were
denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management considers the
Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as most
sales, income, purchases and expenses are denominated in the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

27 MBEBEEREMIAQT
B (%)

FIE R (E)

(i) HEESHT
RZE-—NF+=—_A=+—
B - FBEFIREM A HMER
RETEZERT EF/ T
SOEEZ: - B ittigin, R A
SERBEREBERZTERY
THEIT(ZZ—+H4F 117,000
FETL) o

VA £ SURRE 29 47 72 R AR ) 2
PERARERARELEME
T WEEAERZAGTEZ
TR TAZFEER © %501
EENEIESORIE A EEE A
ETEFERSHRYHEA
BEEZNEBBE - —F
—LFETZONMRAERE

B8 o

(d) EEmEME

AEBEBZHREEERBBIAE
TRARBIIE - EEERATNEE
WEmMHBERINERRE - BRARED
HE WA BERFIGAEIEE
EB 2B EHE - AKE B AL
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTEIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 BEEREERESMTIAERNY
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) £HTEAHEF
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivables (including cash and cash SR EkZE(eE
equivalents) ReRFLFED) = 148,411
Financial assets at amortised cost TREF SR AN BR 2 S RIE B 141,194 -
Prepayment option embedded in BBITRERIBE 2
promissory note issued BRI T = 116
141,194 148,527
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost REERARTTE 2 SmBAE 39,572 35,118
Consideration payable for business combination — #7%4& GFETA(E -
at fair value EATERE - 71,651
39,572 106,769
184 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Contingent consideration assets for business combination,
prepayment option embedded in promissory note issued
and consideration payable for business combination
include contingent consideration are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period on a recurring
basis. The fair value measurements of these financial assets
and liabilities are categorised as Level 3, whose fair value is
measured using significant unobservable inputs, as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

The Group's finance department performs valuations for
the Level 3 financial instruments. The finance department
reports directly to the management and the audit
committee. A valuation report with analysis of changes
in fair value measurement is prepared by the finance
department with external valuation specialists appointed
by the Group at each annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the management. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the management
and the audit committee is held once a year.

27 MBEBEEREMIAQT
B (%)

() AFEHE
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

186

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

The following table provides information about Level 3 fair

value measurements:

Valuation techniques

fhEAN

27

BERREEREMITAAF
B (&)

(f) AFETEHE)

() BRFEFAEBZZHEE
REEGE)
TRIEHENSZAATES
VAR

Significant unobservable input

EXTABERAHE

Financial assets

SREE

Unlisted equity instruments
FELMRATE

Contingent consideration assets for
business combination

EBAHIANREEE

Prepayment option embedded in
promissory note issued
BBITAHERIBANTS 2 R AIE TR

Financial liabilities

TREE

Consideration payable for business
combination

EBAGENRE

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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Market comparable
companies
5 A LR A ]

Binomial Lattice model

ZIEAR R

Binominal Lattice model

—IRA RN

Discounted cash flow
BRRERE

Discount for lack of marketability of 20%
(note 1)
FIRZ FISHE 1EREER20% (KEE1)

Discounted cash flows used to derive the
estimated fair value of First Surplus
Investments Ltd. and its subsidiaries
(the “FS Group”) and the probability
of the Put Option (note 2)

F3 7 &F & First Surplus Investments Ltd.
REMWBAR(TFSEE D HEATE
ZERIRIR 2R B A R AT B E
(Mi5F2) 2 ATgelE

N/A
TER

Discount rate and the probability-
adjusted revenue and profit of FS
Group used to derive the discounted
cash flow

ARFAEERREREZHREUR
PSSR 2 Wi Ko | AT RE 1 8 2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)
Notes:

1. The fair value of unlisted equity instruments is determined using
price/earning ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted
for lack of marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of marketability.
As at 31 December 2018, it is estimated that with all other
variable held constant, a decrease/increase in discount for lack
of marketability by 10% would have no significant impact on
the Group'’s other comprehensive income.

2. Put Option represented the Group shall have rights to sell
the 60% equity interest in First Surplus Investments Ltd. (the
“Sale Shares"”) to independent third parties (the “FS Vendors”)
at the price equivalent to the nominal consideration of
HK$150,000,000, whereupon the FS Vendors shall have the
obligation to purchase the Sales Shares at such price in the
event that FS Group fails to meet the profit guarantee of not
less than HK$14,200,000 audited consolidated net profit after
taxation of FS Group for the twelve full months immediately on
25 October 2016 within a period of 6 months after the date
of approval of audited consolidated financial statements of FS
Group.

The fair value of prepayment option embedded in the
promissory note issued is determined using binomial lattice
model. The fair value is insignificant to the consolidated
statement of financial position and any changes to the
unobservable input would not result in significant changes
in the fair value measurement.

The fair value of consideration payable for business
combination is determined using discounted cash flow
method to capture the present value of the expected
future cash outflows of the Group. The fair value
measurement is negatively related to the discount rate
used, i.e. an increase in discounted rate used in isolation
would result in a decrease in the fair value measurement,
and vice versa. Conversely, the fair value measurement is
positively related to the probability-adjusted revenue and
profit of FS Group, i.e. an increase in probability-adjusted
revenue and profit in isolation would result in an increase
in the fair value measurement, and vice versa.
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of these

27 MBEBEERETMITAQYF
B (%)

()

A FETE (&)

() HERAFEAEZZHBEE
REE (&)
FR - RE=MRATEIER

Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: BT ¢
Contingent ~ Prepayment
Investment Investment  consideration option  Consideration
in equity in equity assetsfor  embedded in payable for
securities securities business promissory business
under HKAS 39 under HKFRS9  combination noteissued  combination
EAEEN  BANKRE
FRAT RUFFET BEITANR
hArES hrEs  £BA0E RRAME EBafkt
2 21 AREEE ZRAETE EARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At 1 January 2017 R=E—+%-A—-A - - 17,971 837 (106,623)
Purchases BE 500 - - - -
Settlement #8 - - - - 41,368
Changes in fair value recognised RERT#RZ
in profit or loss ATEED - - (17.97) (721) (6,396)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=+-H 500 - N 116 (71,651)
Reclassification upon initial RERERE T ERS
application of HKFRS 9 EHZORRENIE (500) 500 - - -
At 1 January 2018 RZE-)\F—R—-H - 500 - 116 (71,651)
Settlement 28 - - - - 72,429
Changes in fair value recognised RERPERZ
in profit or loss AEEEE - - - (116) (778)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$+-A=1-H - 500 - - -

(i) Financial assets/liabilities carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2018

and 2017.
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a) Acquisition of Stars Ventures Limited

On 13 April 2017, the Group, through Profile Venture Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary (the “SV Purchaser”), acquired 100%
equity interest in Stars Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries
and associates (together, “SV Group”) from an independent
third party (the “SV Vendor”) at a nominal consideration of
HK$32,400,000 (the “SV Consideration”) (the “SV Acquisition”).

Pursuant to the agreement for sale and purchase dated 30
March 2017 entered into between the SV Purchaser and the SV
Vendor in relation to the SV Acquisition (the “SV Acquisition
Agreement”), the SV Consideration shall be paid by the SV
Purchaser upon completion of acquisition as to: (i) by way
of assignment and setoff against a sum of approximately
HK$32,326,000, being the aggregate balance of an outstanding
principal amount of the loan receivable of HK$30,000,000
and accrued interest of HK$2,326,000 owed by Stars Ventures
Limited to the Group; and (ii) approximately HK$74,000 in
cash. Pursuant to the SV Acquisition Agreement, the SV Vendor
guaranteed to the SV Purchaser that the accumulated audited
consolidated profit before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation ("EBITDA") of SV Group for the year ending 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 shall be no less than
EUR115,000 (the “SV Profit Guarantee”).

If the actual accumulated audited EBITDA (“Actual EBITDA")
of SV Group for the year ending 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 is less than the SV Profit Guarantee, the SV
Vendor shall compensate the SV Purchaser with an amount
equalled to the product of multiplying HK$32,400,000 by the
percentage of shortfall over the SV Profit Guarantee in cash
within 7 business days after determination of the Actual EBITDA.

Based on the assessment of the director of the Company, the
possibility of shortfall of the SV Profit Guarantee is remote, and
consequently the fair value of contingent consideration asset is
HK$Nil.

28 XEBE4t

(a)

lﬂ?ﬁStars Ventures Limited

—E—+FNA+=H" ~EH
}ﬁ iB 2 & Mt & A 8] Profile Venture
Limited ([SVE R |) - KB ER
{8 32,400,000 % 7T ([ SV (E 1) #¢
WY E = ([SVE F |) Wi Stars
Ventures Limited &2 H [ B A &) & &
N R (FIEISVER]) 2 22
HE(TSVUREE D) -

RIBSVE T RSVE AR T —+F
=A= +HJ¢E%WW%ZAE
Wik (TSVULEE R 1) - SVEHER
URBESERK 1% ¢+ (VA IR A
4 %584932,326,000/8 7T * BlEWE
2 KB 2 7N & 48%830,000,000%8
7T M Stars Ventures Limited JE{~f F 2K
£ E 2 BT B2,326,0008 7T ¢ &
(i) #174,0008 L3R & TS SVRAE
RIESVIREE T SVEARISVE A
RFE HEZT—+F+=ZA=1+—
AN=—F—N\F+A=+—HIF
& SVEBMKRFEL - B\ - e
N #35 (TEBITDA ) B 2 2T T|AZ
SREE R F 115,000 7T ([ SVAR
FaAl) e

WEE—_E—+tF+=-_A=+—8H
KZE—N\F+ZA=+—H1L
FE SVEEERRFAKLEZ
EBITDA ([ B B EBITDA | ) D A SVIR
FEA SVEREBESNERZ®
¥H /532,400,000 7T & PASVIR 8 i
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 28 ¥EBEH(E)
(a) Acquisition of Stars Ventures Limited (Continued) (a) YWfEStars Ventures Limited (#&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired BlWE RN EEREE s ATE
and goodwill arose as at the date of the acquisition were as ERWERSES BB NT
follows:
HK$'000
FiET
Interests in associates REE R R Z S 32,464
Other payables and accruals Hh Rk ER &R (64)
Net identifiable assets attributable to owners RABER AT HR
of the Company FEE 32,400
Goodwill arising on business combination EBEMHEEZEHE -
Total consideration BRE 32,400
Satisfied by: PNV ESINE
Cash e 74
Assignment of amount due to the Group EEENAEBFIA 32,326
32,400
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEZ RS REFE
Consideration paid in cash ENBEERE 74
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e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The goodwill was attributable to the synergies of the acquired
businesses expected to arise after the Group’s acquisitions.
These benefits were not recognised separately from goodwill
because they did not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions was expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$752,000 had been excluded
from the consideration transferred and had been recognised
as “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017.

No revenue was attributable to the additional businesses
generated by SV Group during the year ended 31 December
2017. Loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 included profit
of HK$274,000 contributed by SV Group.

Had the SV Acquisition been taken place on 1 January 2017,
the directors of the Company estimated that the consolidated
revenue and the consolidated loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been HK$64,464,000 and
HK$45,489,000 respectively. This pro-forma information was for
illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an indication
of revenue and result of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisitions been completed
on 1 January 2017.

28 XBEH(E)

(b)

(©

(d)

BEEMASENEEE - (KRS
EB 2 WRAMEESE - ZEMRIAR
HEEORER  RERELTHTE
AR BT E E 2 RERRLE -

B REEEE 2 AER TSR AR
HIHA e

UeBE B REAK AN 752,0008 T B B & &
REHR  FEEBE-_ZT—+F
T A=+ RALEEZHRAER
BRAEMTBFAX] -

HEZ—+tF+-A=+—H1
FE WERSFEASVEREEZ
BINER - BE-_T—+E+_-A
=t HLFEZEIEBEESVEE
EELE Z % 274,000/ 7T °

W ESVERR 2 —+&E— —
HEETT ARAREZHAEHE=Z
—tF+ AT RLFEHFAK
# N fr & B 18 9 5l 764,464,000 7T
45,489,000/ 7T © ixEEE ERHE
HaE  WARRHEER=-_Z—t
F—A—HZEK  AEEBSER
BEBURESRCEERS -
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e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

29 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN

29 B RMEREERSEBHMIE

SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT CHANGE OF HIELR
CONTROL
(a) Partial disposal of equity interest in a subsidiary (a) BT HE—EHE R 2 RE

On 3 January 2018, the Group disposed 20% of the issued
shares of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Global Ocean International

Holdings Limited (“Global Ocean”), for a cash consideration of
HK$2,000 to an independent third party (the “Purchaser”). The
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Global Ocean
as at the date of disposal was a deficit of HK$1,000. As a result,
the Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of

HK$1,000 and an increase in equity attributable to owners of

the Company of HK$3,000. The effect of changes in ownership

interest in Global Ocean is summarised as follows:

R-ZZE—-NF—A=0 KEEHE
2EMBREESHRERAR AR
(DEE]) BEITRD 220% T B
E=FTEH]  H&LREA2,000
BT e RHE R - ERIEIERERS
2 BREEATRF1,00087T » AL -
7 52 B T SR IR 4% IR & R 2 1,000
BT R AR RS ARG IS N
3,000 7T - ESFTAEEDES Y
AT

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FTHET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest disposed EHE TR < REE 1

Consideration received from the Purchaser B FTSRIE 2
Excess of consideration paid recognised in other T 2o A L A (o 45 T 3R

reserve within equity ERNREBLHES E
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e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

29 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT CHANGE OF
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of non-controlling interests

29 MERRMEREERSEBHMIE
HETE (R)

(b) WIEHIZR R

On 30 April 2018, the Group acquired an additional 26.6% of
the issued shares of a 73.4% owned subsidiary, Mooff Games
Limited (“Mooff Games”), for a cash consideration of HK$2.
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Mooff
Games as at the date of acquisition was a surplus of HK$58,000.
As a result, the Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interests of HK$58,000 and an increase in equity attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$58,000.

On 31 December 2018, Group acquired an additional 15% of
the issued shares of a 85% owned subsidiary, Side Quest Limited
("Side Quest”), for a cash consideration of HK$1. The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests in Side Quest as at the
date of acquisition was a deficit of HK$160,000. As a result,
the Group recognised an increase in non-controlling interests of
HK$160,000 and a decrease in equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$160,000.

The effects of changes in ownership interest in Mooff Games
and Side Quest are summarised as follows:

RZZE—NFMNA=1+8 " K&
EEMNREEE73.4%E 2 B
‘A A Mooff Games Limited ( [ Mooff
Games )BT 226.6% &
REA2BTT - RUE B E + Mooff
GamesFEIE IR = 2 IR E B A A 82
58,0008 7T ° EH It - ANEE R IE
72 {5 7 %5 8 4> 58,0008 7T B AN A &
B AFE(L IS 58,0004 7T ©

RZEBE—-—N\E+A=+—H " *%
BEEINBEEESS N IEZ ZHB AR
A]Side Quest Limited ([ Side Quest )
BETRNZ15%  WEREETE
JC o MULEE B H - Side Quest3FERL
4 2 BREME R 7% F 160,000 7T °
E Ut - AN B R IR AR A 2535 A0
160,00078 7T R AN AIHE B A FE(L 12
#5984 160,000/8 7T °

Mooff Games } Side QuestFfT & # 4
S FE) s BT

Mooff Games Side Quest Total
Mooff Games Side Quest BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET
Carrying amount of non-controlling B IR R 2
interest acquired BREE 58 (160) (102)
Consideration paid to non-controlling  JE#ZAR#E 25 2 ERHRE
interests - - -
Deficit/(excess) of consideration RigEm A E b FEE+
paid recognised in other reserve BRZEMNRE
within equity RE/ (BHEBS) 58 (160) (102)
BEFEEEBERAA 193

F3 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

30 COMMITMENTS 30 EiE
As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments R-E—N\F+_A=+—H  RETA
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: B EHEEREN 2 RRKERLOTELR
OO
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FBT
Within 1 year —&F R 3,787 3,787
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRELFNA 239 439
4,026 4,226
The Group is the lessee in respect of its office premises held under AEBARBELENERBEIHAEME
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of 1 year to 2 years ZHEMBEA - BEEEZHFHRA—FE
(2017: 2 years), with an option to renew the leases when all terms are ME(ZTE—LF ZF) A BREENE
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. FFMERI A EENHE - SIBEHEBR S
194 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

32

(a)

(b)

(c)

31 EXRBELIRFREER

Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEZENE#HH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBEFZEEBABHFMNREME7
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as FrtEe < AN AR RIESRIE R
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as SR ENETERREFHEE Y
disclosed in note 8, is as follows: I8 B
2018 2017
—E-N\F I
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Short-term employee benefits HEMEEEF 4,152 4,133
Post-employment benefits BRI EA 104 92
4,256 4,225
Except as disclosed in the note 14 to the consolidated financial (b)) BE-—ZT—N\FR-T—+tF+=A
statements, the Group has not entered into any material related =+—BIEFE - RiGE B wRM
party transactions during the years ended 31 December 2018 FETAPTIREE SN - R B EITIE
and 2017. AIEREETRS -
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company's () HEREFABZEHNARR I

statement of financial position (note 34(a)) and in note 17.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,

the Group does not have significant events after the reporting period.

AR (M 7E34(a)) R MTEE1 7408 ©

32 HEPRIFARER

%

SRRV BBRREMBOMKES
P REEN BN RERRBEEAEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

33 SUBSIDIARIES

196

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The

class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

33 MEAH

TRERBELIEXEAKERE  BEX
BEZMBARZFHE - REEEHIN
R By 2 5858 & mAx -

Country of Particulars of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation issued and  effective ownership  effective ownership
Name of company and operation  paid up capital interest 2018 interest 2017 Principal activity
LR & ERTR EREEEERNS EREGEEGZLA
DR AR EfERR BRREFE (ZB-N\%) (Z2-t%) IEXE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
EE 63 EE ik
Aurum Pacific Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 100% - 100% Provision of administrative services
BREBARRAR BB 1RERH(1ET) RETHER RS
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares = 100% - 100%  Investment holding and provision
(HK$7,200,000) of software platform
BEMBARAT £ 363,636 10 REBRRRESGTE
(7,200,000 7C)
KanHan Technologies China Limited ~ PRC HK$ 1,000,000 - 100% - 100% Provision of software platform
(notes (i) and (ii))
BNBERBARARMEEOR) 1,000,000 7 REETE
Aurum Pacific Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 100% - 100% Provision of money lending business
BRSHARRA BB RGBT REMERK
First Surplus Investments Ltd. BVI 10 shares = 60% - 60% Investment holding
of UST each
First Surplus Investments Ltd. RERUHES 108 (R REEK
FRIET
Mooff Games (notes (i) Hong Kong 10,000 shares = 60% - 44% Development and provision of
(HK$10,000) mobile data solutions and
related services
Mooff Games( Fif k(i) BB 10,000 A% {3 BEPT=EEEIE VI
(10,000/7T) AR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTYIR)
33 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 33 MEBLRA)
Country of Particulars of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation issued and  effective ownership  effective ownership
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest 2018 interest 2017 Principal activity
SRR E BRTR EREERERNS BREEEERGELH)
AEEH EfEER BRBRAS (Z8-N\%) (ZB—tfF) IE%H
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
EE s B# &
Side Quest Hong Kong 3,020,000 shares = 60% - 51% Development and provision of
(HK$4,510,001) mobile data solutions and
related services
Side Quest ) 3,020,000 7 RERREVDHBERATER
(4,510,001%7) 1RRIR
Smart City Hong Kong 12,000 shares - 60% - 60% Development of mobile games
(HK$1,010,000)
BEAH BB 12,0008 7 FEF AR
(1,010,000%7)
Top Banana Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) = 60% - 60% Development of mobile games and
related services
BEARAT BE 1R (178 7T) REFREE KBRS
Touch Fun Productions Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 42% - 42% Development, publication and
(notes (iii) and (iv)) (HK$100) promotion of electronic games
ERAIERR DA (PHEEGi) Kv) b 100RR A3 R - MR EE R
(100%7)
Lasting Surplus Investment HK Limited - Hong Kong 10,000 shares = 60% - 60% Tailor made IT solutions
(HK$10,000)
REEXBRAA &k 10,000/ 13 EHERRB R
(10,000/7T)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTIITR)
33 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 33 MEAR(E)
Country of Particulars of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation issuedand  effective ownership  effective ownership
Name of company and operation  paid up capital interest 2018 interest 2017 Principal activity
MR LR & BRIk EBREGEEZLS BRESRERLH
ARER EfEER BRRAFHS (ZB-N§) (ZB-t%) IE£EK
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B % B# E}3
EMZERRERA PRC RMB3,600,000 - 60% = ~ Development of mobile games and
(notes (i) and (V|)) related services
BN ZERRERA H AR BB F R AR IR TS
GE) 3,600,0007T
Viva Star International Limited BV 50,000 shares - 100% - 100% Property investment
of US1 each
Viva Star International Limited HRRIHS 50,0008 NELRE
BR1ZET
Stars Ventures Limited (note (v)) Republic of 1 share of US1 each - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Seychelles
Stars Ventures Limited(HizE(v) EERANE  BRROERIET REER
Notes: B EE -
(i) Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC law. (i) BB B EEM AN BERE -
(ii) The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name of (ii) BYEAERSE - PNEBAETEZES
the entity is in Chinese. B2
(i) Those companies are subsidiaries of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the iy BRRABAEBZIEZENBARZHEB
Group and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the DA - FEULER RN BB E T 6 2 B
Group's control over it. BT -
(iv)  Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2017. vy REEZT—tF+-A=1+—BIEFEZF
iz o
(v) Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2017 through the SV (v) REE-Z—+F+_A=+—HILtEEHE
Acquisition. BSVEEIEE -
(vi)  Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2018. vy REEZE-N\F+ZA=+—BIEFEZF
iz o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTFIR)

33 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 33 MIBAT(E)
The following table lists out the information relating to subsidiaries of TRV EBEEESBENIEIERES([IE
the Group which has material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The ERER D2 AEEZMBRARZER -
summarised financial information presented below represents the TH ST BERBMERAERA TR EN S
amounts before any inter-company elimination. 2H o
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
FS Group FS Group
FS&E® FS&RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FiT
NCl percentage FEERERA DL 40% 40%
Non-current assets ERBEE 45,372 58,280
Current assets MENEE 51,902 33,109
Current liabilities mENBE (33,962) (18,025)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (7,278) (9,407)
Net assets BEFE 56,034 63,957
Carrying amount of NCI EIERR R AR EE 22,244 25,573
Revenue Wz 21,892 35,144
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EE),/ & (7.730) 6,882
Total comprehensive (expense)/income nE(FX) WA e (7,922) 6,882
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI EIEr i (E18), 5 F) (3,129) 3,088
Dividends paid to NCI /)Eﬁi#?;ﬂx%ﬁ% = -
Cash flows generated from operating KEFREAB RS NEFE
activities, net 8,372 2,726
Cash flows used in investing activities, net KRERSBTAZRSME T (1) (3,093)
Cash flows from financing activities, net MEFHAZREREFE - -
RIFREEEERA A 199
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34 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 34 RAQATZBEFR

(a) Statement of financial position

(a) AIBEMRIE

2018 2017
—B-N\E —FtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIRE 8 8
Investment in equity securities BTS2 IKE 500 500
508 508
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU BB A B IE 310,160 285,432
Deposits, prepayments and e« BARREAESIE
other receivables 5,660 364
Cash and cash equivalents BERESEED 771 14,764
316,591 300,560
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries T B A B FIE 55,015 19,332
Other payables and accrued charges HivfE R R ETE A 244 322
55,259 19,654
Net current assets REEEFE 261,332 280,906
NET ASSETS EEBE 261,840 281,414
Capital and reserves ERR G
Share capital R 50,906 43,546
Reserves Ee=] 210,934 237,868
TOTAL EQUITY ERREE 261,840 281,414
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34 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual components of

34 AATZHMBER ()

(b) FAREERFEERIALETH 2 E

reserve during the year: FIET -
Share Share Capital Capital ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus losses Total
B B EE ERE EREH RitE8 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAL TAT TAT TATL
(note 26(b)(i))
(FtEE2600)00)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-+t5-H-H 36,288 335,501 2,261 1,609 (112,639) 263,020
Loss and total comprehensive ~ EEBER2AES
expense for the year k) - - - - (9,876) (9,876)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)(il) ~ Z577AR {7 (MEF26(a) i) 7,258 21,012 - - - 28,270
7,258 21,012 - - (9,876) 18,394
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t&+=-fA=+-H 43,546 356,513 2,261 1,609 (122,515) 281,414
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\%-5-H 43,546 356,513 2,261 1,609 (122,515) 281,414
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBERZEFX
expense for the year k) - - - - (51,911) (51,911)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)(il) ~ Z77R (R (P =F26(a) i) 7,360 24977 - - - 32,337
7,360 24977 - - (51,91 (19,574)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=+-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (174,426) 261,840
BEFEEEBERAA 201
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(AETTHIR)

34 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has issued a corporate
guarantee in respect of a loan made by a finance company to a
subsidiary (see note 21).

The Company has issued corporate guarantee in respect of the
motor vehicles under finance leases at 3.5% —
with the carrying amount of approximately HK$3,188,000 (2017:
HK$4,170,000) as at 31 December 2018.

4.8% per annum

As as 31 December 2017, the Company had issued a corporate
guarantee in respect of the promissory note issued by a
subsidiary of the Company.

The fair value of these guarantees has not been provided for in
these consolidated financial statements as the directors of the
Company consider the amount involved to be insignificant.

35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

202

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions are
factors to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial

statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth in note 2.
The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the
most significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are reviewed annually in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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() BHHAERE
R=E—\F+=A=+—8 &2
FIBhE TS 2 AN 2 FIR A B
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NEIFIRIE B E HE RS F3.5%-
48%HE B HITARIER - KA
{E#73,188,0008 L (=T —+F :
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment loss on intangible assets (Continued)
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value
in use, the expected cash flows generated by the intangible
assets are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of future software
revenue and the amount of service costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of software revenue and the amount of service costs,
and discount rate.

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value. Details of the impairment loss
calculation are set out in note 12.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses.
As these deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax benefits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
received and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered; conversely, the carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets are disclosed in note 23(b).

35 EETflET 5 ()

(a)

()

()

BREERERR (&)

AU E e R AN TR SR AN B
REERZERE - EE®RAEE
i AMETEEELZRERET
MIREHRE  METRERLARR
B RE R REKASEIELEXRH
i o AEEER YR RGZER -
EFAROSRAENH ISR &8
RIRBEAERE N ZBRRIER -
SRS S IRTS A B A B REER

B EREE R
BEEmEENRER  AHESEH
BoReELEN 2 ERERELRA
it FAEEMEER - EREME
HWRERSELFBUZRICRERE
NMBARRIRE - AFTEIR(E - RIERE
B2 T ERFIEHNME2

EEHIEEE

IEIERTE & B L AR B FA R TE B 1R R
R HRIELEBIEEEE LA R
PR E AR F 5 R LA PR R E) B B TEAR A
ZIER TR - BEEAMTEAK
JE SRR F 2 AT RE MEVE S HIBT o Wk
RIEREB R A e S IER A EER T
UgE - BIEIRE R EE TR - WiE
REINELEFIREE - R2Z + BRIER
HAERBEET AR - UTEAT4E
B RMERT A AR s 2
HEERIEEE 2 FZ AR - BEE
ERIBEE 2 S KRB EF BN
FE23(b)#E5E ©
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Impairment allowances on contract assets, trade
and other receivables and loans and interest

receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for contract assets,
trade and other receivables and loans and interest receivables
by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group'’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the end of the reporting period. Where
the estimation is different from the previous estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of contract assets,
trade and other receivables and loans and interest receivables
and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate

is changed.

(e) Fair value of Level 3 financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is
determined using valuation techniques including discounted
cash flow model and binomial lattice model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations of
inputs such as discount rate, risk-free interest rate, volatility and
probability. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments (including
contingent consideration assets for business combination,
prepayment option embedded in promissory note issued and

consideration payable for business combination).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTHIR)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 36 BE-_F—NF+=ZA=1+—

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases!

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified in due
course and will be taken into consideration when determining whether
to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective date
and which transitional approach to take, where there are alternative
approaches allowed under the new standards.
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

206

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(l), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the lease.
The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their right and obligations under a lease. However,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will be required to account for all leases of more
than 12 months in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-
use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months
or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties which are currently classified as operating leases.
The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the profit or loss over the period of the lease.
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36

37

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore
apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
are entered into on or after the date of initial application. In addition,
the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the
new accounting model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach
for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2019, if necessary, and will not restate the comparative
information. As disclosed in note 30, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for properties
amounted to HK$4,026,000 as at 31 December 2018, a portion of
which is payable between 1 and 2 years after the reporting date.
Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease
liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted to
HK$3,835,000, after taking account the effects of discounting, as at 1
January 2019.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is
not restated. Further details of the changes in accounting policies are
disclosed in note 2(c).
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TEHBERE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
=E2E-N\F —T+F —TRF —T-HF FT-OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT FAT FHET FAET
RESULTS S
Revenue from continuing and SFEREALE
discontinued operations KR RS 2 s 53,968 64,464 34,459 41,268 21,412
Loss before taxation MR F A EIE (43,534) (43,846) (40,351) (26,728) (1,420)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,/ (Fk) 1,462 (1,889) 56 763 (735)
Loss for the year FEE51E (42,072) (45,735) (40,295) (25,965) (2,155)
Attributable to: AR AL FEAS -
Owners of the Company VIN/NGTEZ 2N (38,967) (48,823) (37,986) (20,131) (1,978)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR R A (3,105) 3,088 (2,309) (5,834) (177)
(42,072) (45,735) (40,295) (25,965) (2,155)
Loss per share BiREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BRI (3.21) (4.50) (5.22) (4.84) (0.63)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEME 324,784 405,730 451,871 273,819 168,323
Total liabilities BfEBE (54,208)  (123,350)  (153,427) (38,252) (40,355)
270,576 282,380 298,444 235,567 127,968
Total equity attributable to VIN/NETET PN
owners of the Company JE(EREm=ABRE 248,383 257,107 276,259 230,949 116,912
Non-controlling interests IR A 22,193 25,273 22,185 4,618 11,056
270,576 282,380 298,444 235,567 127,968
208 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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